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PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Dorchester Minerals, L.P. is a publicly traded Dedee limited partnership that commenced operationdanuary 31, 2003 upon the
combination of Dorchester Hugoton, Ltd., RepublayRty Company, L.P. and Spinnaker Royalty Compéar, Dorchester Hugoton was a
publicly traded Texas limited partnership, and R#joiand Spinnaker were private Texas limited panghips. Our common units are listed on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market. American Stockrigfer & Trust Company is our registrar and tranafggnt and its address and telepf
number is 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038, (8987-5449. Our executive offices are located aB383ak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300,
Dallas, Texas, 75219-4541, and our telephone numi{@d4) 559-0300. We have established an Intemeésite at www.dmlp.néhat
contains the last annual meeting presentation dimdk o the NASDAQ website. You may obtain all cemt filings free of charge at the
NASDAQ website by clickin¢‘Real-Time SEC Filings.” We will provide electronic paper copies of our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, or current reports-orm 8-K and amendments to those reports fitddraished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) free of charge uporitemirequest at our executive offices. In this repghe term “Partnership,” as well as the
terms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometimesadsas abbreviated references to Dorchester Mindr&tsitself or Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
and its related entities.

Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Manageine, which is managed by its general partnercbester Minerals Management
GP LLC. As a result, the Board of Managers of Desthr Minerals Management GP LLC exercises effeaontrol of our Partnership. In this
report, the term “general partner” is used as dmeabated reference to Dorchester Minerals Manage. Our general partner also controls
and owns, directly and indirectly, all of the pantship interests in Dorchester Minerals OperatiRgand its general partner. Dorchester
Minerals Operating LP owns working interests artteoproperties underlying our Net Profits Interésts‘NPIs”), provides day-to-day
operational and administrative services to us amdyeneral partner, and is the employer of alletmployees who perform such services. In
report, the term “operating partnership” is useamsbbreviated reference to Dorchester Minerakr&@img LP.

Our general partner and the operating partnerskiDalaware limited partnerships, and the geneaghprs of their general partners are
Delaware limited liability companies. These ensitend our Partnership were initially formed in Dmaber 2001 in connection with the
combination. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Dorchedtinerals Oklahoma LP and its general partner@kiahoma entities that acquired our
wholly owned acquisition subsidiary and its gengaatner by merger on December 31, 2009. On Matcl2@10, we formed a new subsidiary,
and it acquired all of the outstanding partnershiprests in Maecenas Minerals LLP, a Texas limiiggoility partnership.

Our business may be described as the acquisitvameiship and administration of Royalty Propertied AIPIs. The Royalty Properties
consist of producing and nonproducing mineral, lyyaverriding royalty, net profits, and leasehaiterests located in 574 counties and
parishes in 25 states. The NPIs represent netpmferriding royalty interests in various propestowned by the operating partnership.

Our partnership agreement requires that we diggiuarterly an amount equal to all funds that eeeive from the Royalty Properties
and the NPIs less certain expenses and reasorsielees.

We intend to grow by acquiring additional oil aratural gas properties, subject to the limitatioasadibed below. The approval of the
holders of a majority of our outstanding commortairs required for our general partner to caust® @equire or obtain any oil and natural gas
property interest, unless the acquisition is commgletary to our business and is made either:

» in exchange for our limited partner interests, iidhg common units, not exceeding 20% of the comomits outstanding afte
issuance; o
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* in exchange for cash, if the aggregate cost ofemagyisitions made for cash during the tw-month period ending on the first
occur of the execution of a definitive agreementifie acquisition or its consummation is no moentth0% of our aggregate cash
distributions for the four most recent fiscal qeast

Unless otherwise approved by the holders of a ritgjof our common units, in the event that we acgjpiroperties for a combination of
cash and limited partner interests, including commnits, (i) the cash component of the acquisitionsideration must be equal to or less than
5% of the aggregate cash distributions made byPautnership for the four most recent quarters @nthé amount of limited partnership
interests, including common units, to be issueslich acquisition, after giving effect to such isse shall not exceed 10% of the common
units outstanding.

Credit Facilities and Financing Plans

We do not have a credit facility in place, nor de anticipate doing so. We do not anticipate inograny debt, other than trade debt
incurred in the ordinary course of our business. @utnership agreement prohibits us from incuriimdgbtedness, other than trade payables,
(i) in excess of $50,000 in the aggregate at amgrgtime; or (ii) which would constitute “acquisiti indebtedness” (as defined in Section 514
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended)der to avoid unrelated business taxable incfoméderal income tax purposes. We
may finance any growth of our business through &sétipns of oil and natural gas properties by iaguadditional limited partnership interests
or with cash, subject to the limits described abawe in our partnership agreement.

Under our partnership agreement, we may also fimanc growth through the issuance of additionalrgaship securities, including
options, rights, warrants and appreciation righith wespect to partnership securities from timértee in exchange for the consideration and on
the terms and conditions established by our geparaher in its sole discretion. However, we mayissue limited partnership interests that
would represent over 20% of the outstanding limgadnership interests immediately after givingeffto such issuance or that would have
greater rights or powers than our common unitsauitlthe approval of the holders of a majority of outstanding common units. Except in
connection with qualifying acquisitions, we do eatrently anticipate issuing additional partnerséggurities. We have an effective registra
statement on Form S-4 registering 5,000,000 comumits that may be offered and issued by the Pastiiefrom time to time in connection
with asset acquisitions or other business comhindtiansactions. At present, 2,565,000 units reraadilable.

Regulation

Many aspects of the production, pricing and mankgetf crude oil and natural gas are regulated degri@ and state agencies. Legislation
affecting the oil and natural gas industry is unctarstant review for amendment or expansion, wirtjuently increases the regulatory bur
on affected members of the industry.

Exploration and production operations are subjeettrious types of regulation at the federal, state local levels. Such regulation
includes:

» permits for the drilling of wells

* bonding requirements in order to drill or operatdisy

» the location and number of wel

» the method of drilling and casing wel

» the surface use and restoration of properties wdooh wells are drilled
» the plugging and abandonment of we
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* numerous federal and state safety requirem
* environmental requirement

+ property taxes and severance taxes;

» specific state and federal income tax provisic

Oil and natural gas operations are also subjecatious conservation laws and regulations. Thegelatgions govern the size of drilling
and spacing units or proration units and the dgmditvells that may be drilled and the unitizatmmpooling of oil and natural gas properties
addition, state conservation laws establish a maxirallowable production from oil and natural gadlsvéhese state laws also generally
prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas ampose certain requirements regarding the ratglofipproduction. These regulations can limit
the amount of oil and natural gas that the opesatbour properties can produce.

The transportation of natural gas after sale byaipes of our properties is sometimes subject goilegion by state authorities. The
interstate transportation of natural gas is sulipéderal governmental regulation, including degian of tariffs and various other matters, by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Customers and Pricing

The pricing of oil and natural gas sales is pritgadetermined by supply and demand in the markegéand can fluctuate considerably.
As a royalty owner and non-operator, we have exgtgimited access to timely information, involvemeand operational control over the
volumes of oil and natural gas produced and sotiithe terms and conditions on which such volumesvaarketed and sold.

Since 2004 the operating partnership has sold ofost natural gas production to a Williams enfigurrently Williams Gas Marketing,
Inc.) on a daily market price basis using a yeeadsgtract that will continue through October 201he®perating partnership frequently reviews
alternative gas purchasers. We believe that tteedbdVilliams by the operating partnership or thgsl of any single customer would not have a
material adverse effect on us due to alternativetmasers.

Competition

The energy industry in which we compete is sublig@ttense competition among many companies, laotiet and smaller than we are,
many of which have financial and other resourcesigr than we have.

Business Opportunities Agreement

Pursuant to a business opportunities agreement@omrour general partner, the general partneuo§eneral partner, the owners of the
general partner of our general partner (the “GRi¢&), and, in their individual capacities as offis of the general partner of our general
partner, William Casey McManemin, James E. RalayHrC. Allen, Jr., we have agreed that, except #ighconsent of our general partner,
which it may withhold in its sole discretion, wellwiot engage in any business not permitted bypautnership agreement, and we will have no
interest or expectancy in any business opportuhéydoes not consist exclusively of the oil anturaed gas business within a designated area
that includes portions of Texas County, Oklahoma &tevens County, Kansas. All opportunities thatartside the designated area or are not
oil and natural gas business activities, are cakb@dunced opportunities.

The parties also have agreed that, as long astivitias of the general partner, the GP Partiastheir affiliates or manager designees
conducted in accordance with specified standarda;erenounced opportunities:

» our general partner, the GP Parties and theiiatts or the manager designees will not be pradikfitom engaging in the oil and
natural gas business or any other business, egelif activity is in direct or indirect competitianth our business activitie

3
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« affiliates of our general partner, the GP Parties their affiliates and the manager designeesnaillhave to offer us any busine
opportunity;

» we will have no interest or expectancy in any besiopportunity pursued by affiliates of our gehpaatner, the GP Parties or th
affiliates and the manager designees;

* we waive any claim that any business opportunitgped by our general partner, the GP Parties ardffdiates and the manager
designees constitutes a corporate opportunitystatld have been presented to

The standards specified in the business opporésnéreement generally provide that the GP Pantidgheir affiliates and manager
designees must conduct their business throughsteiutheir own personnel and assets and not htluse of any personnel or assets of us
general partner or operating partnership. A mandgsignee or personnel of a company in which afiljaéé of our general partner or any GP
Party or their affiliates has an interest or in @¥tha manager designee is an owner, director, manaagner or employee (except for our
general partner and its general partner and thésidiaries) is not allowed to usurp a businesdppity solely for his or her personal benefit,
as opposed to pursuing, for the benefit of the isgpaparty an opportunity in accordance with thec#fied standards.

In certain circumstances, if a GP Party or any sligay thereof, any officer of the general partoéour general partner or any of their
subsidiaries, or a manager of the general partheurogeneral partner that is an affiliate of a Bdtty signs a binding agreement to purchas
and natural gas interests, excluding oil and nagas working interests, then such party must paet prior to the consummation of the
transactions so that we may determine whether tsuguthe purchase of the oil and natural gas istedirectly from the seller. If we do not
pursue the purchase of the oil and natural gasasii® or fail to respond to the purchasing pamgtce within the provided time, the
opportunity will also be considered a renouncedoopmity.

In the event any GP Party or one of their subsielaacquires an oil and natural gas interest, diofyoil and natural gas working
interests, in the designated area, it will offesédl these interests to us within one month of gleting the acquisition. This obligation also
applies to any package of oil and natural gaséstsr including oil and natural gas working intesei at least 20% of the net acreage of the
package is within the designated area; howeves dbligation does not apply to interests purchasedtransaction in which the procedures
described above were applied and followed by thiicable affiliate.

Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

Our operations do not directly involve the openagilrisks and uncertainties associated with dglfior, and the production and
transportation of, oil and natural gas. Howevermay be indirectly affected by the operational sigkd uncertainties faced by the operators of
our properties, including the operating partnershipose operations may be materially curtailedayksi or canceled as a result of numerous
factors, including:

» the presence of unanticipated pressure or irregjelain formations

* accidents

e title problems:

» weather conditions

« compliance with governmental requirements;

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm

Also, the ability of the operators of our propestte market oil and natural gas production depemdsumerous factors, many of which

are beyond their control, including:

» capacity and availability of oil and natural gasteyns and pipeline

4
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» effect of federal and state production and trarntsgion regulations
» changes in supply and demand for oil and naturs ajad
« creditworthiness of the purchasers of oil and redtgas.
The occurrence of an operational risk or unceryaimat materially impacts the operations of therafms of our properties could have a

material adverse effect on the amount that we vedai connection with our interests in productioonfi our properties, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condittwnesult of operations.

In accordance with customary industry practicespvantain insurance against some, but not allhefrisks to which our business
exposes us. While we believe that we are reasotiraslyed against these risks, the occurrence aharsured loss could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or resolt operations.

Employees

As of February 24, 2011, the operating partnerbhaigh 20 full-time employees in our Dallas, Texasceffand seven full-time employees
in field locations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business
Our cash distributions are highly dependent onaoil natural gas prices, which have historically beery volatile.

Our quarterly cash distributions depend signifigaanh the prices realized from the sale of oil andparticular, natural gas. Historically,
the markets for oil and natural gas have been il®ktd may continue to be volatile in the futWearious factors that are beyond our control
will affect prices of oil and natural gas, such as:

» the worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and redtgas;

» the ability of the members of the Organization efrBleum Exporting Countries and others to agreentbmaintain oil prices ar
production controls

» political instability or armed conflict in ¢-producing regions
» the price and level of foreign impor

» the level of consumer demar

» the price and availability of alternative fue

» the availability of pipeline capacit

» weather conditions

« domestic and foreign governmental regulations ardg; anc
» the overall economic environme

Lower oil and natural gas prices may reduce theuwarnof oil and natural gas that is economic to paedand may reduce our revenues
and operating income. The volatility of oil andunall gas prices reduces the accuracy of estiméfiesuve cash distributions to unitholders.

5
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We do not control operations and development oRibwalty Properties or the properties underlying thiPIs that the operating partnership
does not operate, which could impact the amouptioicash distributions.

As the owner of a fractional undivided mineral oyalty interest, we do not control the developnudrthe Royalty or NPI properties or
the volumes of oil and natural gas produced froemthand our ability to influence development of prmducing properties is severely limited.
Also, since one of our stated business objectivés avoid the generation of unrelated businessbiaxincome, we are prohibited from
participation in the development of our propertgssa working interest or other expersaring owner. The decision to explore or develagsd
properties, including infill drilling, exploratioaf horizons deeper or shallower than the currgmtbducing intervals, and application of
enhanced recovery techniques will be made by tleeadpr and other working interest owners of eadpeirty (including our lessees) and may
be influenced by factors beyond our control, inghgdout not limited to oil and natural gas pricieserest rates, budgetary considerations and
general industry and economic conditions.

Our unitholders are not able to influence or cdrttre operation or future development of the prapsrunderlying the NPIs. The
operating partnership is unable to influence sigaiftly the operations or future development ofprties that it does not operate. The
operating partnership and the other current opesatiothe properties underlying the NPIs are umaeobligation to continue operating the
underlying properties. The operating partnershipsell any of the properties underlying the NPk ihoperates and relinquish the ability to
control or influence operations. Any such saleransfer must also simultaneously include the NP&a@orresponding price. Our unitholders
not have the right to replace an operator.

Our lease bonus revenue depends in significantgrathe actions of third parties, which are outsadeur control.

Significant portions of the Royalty Properties ardeased mineral interests. With limited exceptiams have the right to grant leases of
these interests to third parties. We anticipateivéing cash payments as bonus consideration fottiggathese leases in most instances. Our
ability to influence third parties’ decisions todoene our lessees with respect to these nonprodpcoperties is severely limited, and those
decisions may be influenced by factors beyond oatrol, including but not limited to oil and natlugas prices, interest rates, budgetary
considerations and general industry and econonriditons.

The operating partnership may transfer or abandoopprties that are subject to the NPIs.

Our general partner, through the operating partigrsnay at any time transfer all or part of thegmrties underlying the NPIs. Our
unitholders are not entitled to vote on any transfewever, any such transfer must also simultasiganclude the NPIs at a corresponding
price.

The operating partnership or any transferee magddraany well or property if it reasonably belietieat the well or property can no
longer produce in commercially economic quantitiéss could result in termination of the NPIs reigtto the abandoned well.

Cash distributions are affected by production atfteo costs, some of which are outside of our contro

The cash available for distribution that comes fraum royalty and mineral interests, including thels| is directly affected by increase
production costs and other costs. Some of theds aos outside of our control, including costsegfulatory compliance and severance and
other similar taxes. Other expenditures are didthiebusiness necessity, such as drilling additiorgdis in response to the drilling activity of
others.

Our oil and natural gas reserves and the underlypngperties are depleting assets, and there aréditions on our ability to replace them.

Our revenues and distributions depend in largegrathe quantity of oil and natural gas producednfproperties in which we hold an
interest. Over time, all of our producing oil aratural gas properties will

6
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experience declines in production due to depletiotheir oil and natural gas reservoirs, with thtes of decline varying by property.
Replacement of reserves to maintain productioni$enegjuires maintenance, development or exploragtiojects on existing properties, or the
acquisition of additional properties.

The timing and size of maintenance, developmeeiptoration projects will depend on the market @siof oil and natural gas and on
other factors beyond our control. Many of the dedis regarding implementation of such projectsluding drilling or exploration on any
unleased and undeveloped acreage, will be madeidyparties. In addition, development possibititiey the operating partnership in the
Hugoton field are limited by the developed naturéhat field and by regulatory restrictions.

Our ability to increase reserves through futureugitions is limited by restrictions on our usecafh and limited partnership interests for
acquisitions and by our general partner’s obligatmuse all reasonable efforts such as NPIs ta@avwelated business taxable income. In
addition, the ability of affiliates of our genergsrtner to pursue business opportunities for thwim accounts without tendering them to us in
certain circumstances may reduce the acquisitioesepted to us for consideration.

Drilling activities on our properties may not beqaiuctive, which could have an adverse effect andutesults of operations and financial
condition.

The operating partnership may undertake drillintivéiees in limited circumstances on the propertigglerlying the NPIs, and third part
may undertake drilling activities on our other pedes. Any increases in our reserves will comenfguch drilling activities or from
acquisitions.

Drilling involves a wide variety of risks, includirthe risk that no commercially productive oil @tural gas reservoirs will be
encountered. The cost of drilling, completing apérating wells is often uncertain, and drilling ceg®ns may be delayed or canceled as a
result of a variety of factors, including:

» pressure or irregularities in formatiot

e equipment failures or acciden

» unexpected drilling condition:

» shortages or delays in the delivery of equipm

» adverse weather conditions; ¢

» disputes with dri-site owners

Future drilling activities on our properties mayt he successful. If these activities are unsucogédsis failure could have an adverse

effect on our future results of operations andrfaial condition. In addition, under the terms o thiPIs, the costs of unsuccessful future

drilling on the working interest properties that¢ aubject to the NPIs will reduce amounts payablestunder the NPIs by 96.97% of these
costs.

Our ability to identify and capitalize on acquisttis is limited by contractual provisions and subgitd competition.

Our partnership agreement limits our ability tow@iog oil and natural gas properties in the futesgecially for consideration other than
our limited partnership interests. Because of ifmédtions on our use of cash for acquisitions andur ability to accumulate cash for
acquisition purposes, we may be required to attémeffect acquisitions with our limited partneysiterests. However, sellers of properties
we would like to acquire may be unwilling to taker dimited partnership interests in exchange faperties.

Our partnership agreement obligates our generéigrato use all reasonable efforts to avoid gemegatnrelated business taxable inca
Accordingly, to acquire working interests we wotlave to arrange for them

7
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to be converted into overriding royalty interestst profits interests, or another type of intetbat does not generate unrelated business taxabl
income. Third parties may be less likely to dedahwis than with a purchaser to which such a camitiould not apply. These restrictions

could prevent us from pursuing or completing bussnepportunities that might benefit us and ourhatiters, particularly unitholders who are
not tax-exempt investors.

The duty of affiliates of our general partner teggnt acquisition opportunities to our Partnerghlpnited, pursuant to the terms of the
business opportunities agreement. Accordingly,r®ss opportunities that could potentially be puddoyeus might not necessarily come to our
attention, which could limit our ability to pursaebusiness strategy of acquiring oil and naturalgyaperties.

We compete with other companies and producersciguiaitions of oil and natural gas interests. Mahthese competitors have
substantially greater financial and other resouticas we do.

Any future acquisitions will involve risks that édadversely affect our business, which our unidleod generally will not have the
opportunity to evaluate.

Our current strategy contemplates that we may dhoaugh acquisitions. We expect to participateigtdssions relating to potential
acquisition and investment opportunities. If we iammate any additional acquisitions, our capitéiimeand results of operations may change
significantly, and our unitholders will not haveetbhpportunity to evaluate the economic, financiad ather relevant information that we will
consider in connection with the acquisition, unlgmsterms of the acquisition require approvalwfwnitholders. Additionally, our unitholders
will bear 100% of the dilution from issuing new comon units while receiving essentially 96% of thedfé as 4% of the benefit goes to our
general partner.

Acquisitions and business expansions involve numeerisks, including assimilation difficulties, unidiarity with new assets or new
geographic areas and the diversion of managematt¢’stion from other business concerns. In additioa success of any acquisition will
depend on a number of factors, including the ahititestimate accurately the recoverable volumess#rves, rates of future production and
future net revenues attributable to reserves amgdess possible environmental liabilities. Ouieneand analysis of properties prior to any
acquisition will be subject to uncertainties anahsistent with industry practice, may be limiteds@ope. We may not be able to successfully
integrate any oil and natural gas properties thmawquire into our operations, or we may not achimsired profitability objectives.

A natural disaster or catastrophe could damage lifes, gathering systems and other facilities $etvice our properties, which could
substantially limit our operations and adverselfeaf our cash flow.

If gathering systems, pipelines or other facilitileat serve our properties are damaged by anyalatisaster, accident, catastrophe or
other event, our income could be significantly inipted. Any event that interrupts the productigathering or transportation of our oil and
natural gas, or which causes us to share in sigmifiexpenditures not covered by insurance, caltdraely impact the market price of our
limited partnership units and the amount of casdilakle for distribution to our unitholders. We dot carry business interruption insurance.

The vast majority of the properties subject tokls are geographically concentrated, which cowddse net proceeds payable under the
NPIs to be impacted by regional events.

The vast majority of the properties subject toNliRis are all natural gas properties that are lacabmost exclusively in the Hugoton fie
in Oklahoma and Kansas. Because of this geograyoinicentration, any regional events, including redtdisasters that increase costs, reduce
availability of equipment or supplies, reduce dechanlimit production may impact the net proceedggble under the NPIs more than if the
properties were more geographically diversified.
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The number of prospective natural gas purchasetsrathods of delivery are considerably less thanlgvotherwise exist from a more
geographically diverse group of properties. Assalte natural gas sales after gathering and corajare$end to be sold to one buyer in each
state, thereby increasing credit risk.

Under the terms of the NPIs, much of the econoisicaf the underlying properties is passed alonggo

Under the terms of the NPIs, virtually all costattmay be incurred in connection with the propsrtiecluding overhead costs that are
subject to an annual reimbursement limit, are destbias production costs or excess production aoststermining amounts payable to us.
Therefore, to the extent of the revenues from tiveéned properties, we bear 96.97% of the costseofvorking interest properties. If costs
exceed revenues, we do not receive any payments timelNPIs. However, except as described beloware@ot required to pay any excess
costs.

The terms of the NPIs provide for excess costsdhanot be charged currently because they exceeshtuevenues to be accumulated
and charged in future periods, which could resulis not receiving any payments under the NPI4 alhfprior uncharged costs have been
recovered by the operating partnership.

Damages associated with the production and gatlgeoirour oil and natural gas properties could affear cash flow.

The operating partnership owns and operates gathsyistems and compression facilities. Casualsel®sr damages from these
operations would be production costs under thegerfithe NPIs and could adversely affect our césh. f

We may indirectly experience costs from repairaplacement of aging equipment.

Some of the operating partnership’s current workintgrest wells were drilled and have been prodysince prior to 1954. The 132-mile
Oklahoma gas pipeline gathering system was orilyifastalled in or about 1948 and because of itsiagn need of periodic repairs and
upgrades. Should major components of this systeine significant repairs or replacement, the otiegepartnership may incur substantial
capital expenditures in the operation of the Okiahgroperties, which, as production costs, woutllice our cash flow from these properties.

Our cash flow is subject to operating hazards antbteseen interruptions for which we may not bl finisured.

Neither we nor the operating partnership are fungured against certain risks, either because isistitance is not available or because of
high premium costs. Operations that affect the @rigs are subject to all of the risks normallyidienit to the oil and natural gas business,
including blowouts, cratering, explosions and padln and other environmental damage, any of whaklatresult in substantial decreases in
the cash flow from our royalty interests and otihégrests due to injury or loss of life, damagetalestruction of wells, production facilities or
other property, cleanp responsibilities, regulatory investigations @edalties and suspension of operations. Any unéasaosts relating to tl
properties underlying the NPIs will be deducte@asoduction cost in calculating the net proceeaig@ple to us.

Governmental policies, laws and regulations cowgidhan adverse impact on our business and casfibdigsons.

Our business and the properties in which we hdktrésts are subject to federal, state and loca &wd regulations relating to the oil and
natural gas industry as well as regulations rajatinsafety matters. These laws and regulation$asa a significant impact on production and
costs of production. For example, both
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Oklahoma and Kansas, where properties that aretioj the NPIs are located, have the ability,dadiyeor indirectly, to limit production from
those properties, and such limitations or changeisdse limitations could negatively impact ushia future.

As another example, Oklahoma regulations curreetiyire administrative hearings to change the aunagon of the operating
partnership’s gas production wells from one welldach 640 acres in the Guymon-Hugoton field. Presly, certain interested parties have
sought regulatory changes in Oklahoma for “infithy’increased density drilling similar to that wiis available in Kansas, which allows one
well for each 320 acres. Should Oklahoma changexitging regulations to readily permit infill diilg, it is possible that a number of
producers will commence increased density drillimgreas adjacent to the properties in Oklahomiaatteasubject to the NPIs. If the operating
partnership or other operators of our propertieaatado the same, our production levels relatinthése properties may decrease, or mineral
owners may demand increased density drilling. @apitpenditures relating to increased density erptioperties underlying the NPIs would
deducted from amounts payable to us under the NPIs.

Environmental costs and liabilities and changingiesnmental regulation could affect our cash flow.

As with other companies engaged in the ownershippaaduction of oil and natural gas, we always expe have some risk of exposure
to environmental costs and liabilities becausectiss associated with environmental compliancewrediation could reduce the amount we
would receive from our properties. The properties/hich we hold interests are subject to extenfdderal, state, tribal and local regulatory
requirements relating to environmental affairs,|ltheand safety and waste management. Governmeuttedrities have the power to enforce
compliance with applicable regulations and permitsich could increase production costs on our pitiggeand affect their cash flow. Third
parties may also have the right to pursue legaasto enforce compliance. It is likely that exgitares in connection with environmental
matters, individually or as part of normal capéapenditure programs, will affect the net cash ffowmn our properties. Future environmental
law developments, such as stricter laws, regulat@renforcement policies, could significantly im&se the costs of production from our
properties and reduce our cash flow.

Federal hydraulic fracturing legislation could dglar restrict development of our oil and naturalkgaroperties.

During the last Congressional Session, severa Widre proposed that would have subjected the gsamfehydraulic fracturing to
regulation under the Safe Drinking Water Act. Saniegislation may be proposed by the current Cesgyrin addition, the EPA’s Office of
Research and Development (ORD) is conducting asfieestudy to investigate the possible relatidpstbetween hydraulic fracturing and
drinking water. The ORD expects to have the ingtaldy results available by late 2012. Hydraulacfuring involves the injection of water,
sand and chemicals under pressure into rock foomsitio stimulate production. The use of hydraubcturing is necessary to produce
commercial quantities of crude oil and natural fyas many reservoirs. Although it is not possibilehis time to predict the final outcome of
the ORD’s study and any resulting legislation, aey federal restrictions on hydraulic fracturingikcbsignificantly increase operating, capital
and compliance costs. Such cost increases coudd delrestrict development by operators of ouaail natural gas properties.

The adoption of climate change legislation by Cesgrcould result in increased operating costs attliced demand for the oil and natural
gas production from our properties.

To date, Congress has not passed a bill specifiadtiressing greenhouse gas (GHG) regulation. Heryédve EPA has issued
greenhouse gas monitoring and reporting regulatioaiswent into effect January 1, 2010, and requp®rting by regulated facilities by Mar
2011 and annually thereafter. Beyond measuring@parting, the EPA issued an “Endangerment Findingler section 202(a) of the Clean
Air Act, concluding greenhouse gas pollution theaatthe public health and welfare of current atdréugenerations. The EPA has
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issued final regulations requiring petroleum antlired gas operators meeting a certain emissiorsiiold to report their greenhouse gas
emissions to the EPA. The EPA has indicated thatllituse data collected through the reporting sule decide whether to promulgate future
greenhouse gas emission limits. Although it ispadsible at this time to predict whether or whem@ress may act on climate change
legislation, any laws or regulations that may bepaed to restrict or reduce emissions of GHGs coedgiire the operating partnership and oil
and natural gas operators that develop our pre@setdiincur increased operating costs and could havadverse effect on demand for the oil
and natural gas produced from our properties.

Our oil and natural gas reserve data and future mtenue estimates are uncertain.

Estimates of proved reserves and related futureewenues are projections based on engineeringaddtaeports of independent
consulting petroleum engineers hired for that pagpd he process of estimating reserves requiregastial judgment, resulting in imprecise
determinations. Different reserve engineers mayentifferent estimates of reserve quantities aratedirevenue based on the same data.
Therefore, those estimates should not be constradeing accurate estimates of the current magteéof our proved reserves. If these
estimates prove to be inaccurate, our businessbmaylversely affected by lower revenues. We aeetfl by changes in oil and natural gas
prices. Oil prices and natural gas prices may é&pee inverse price changes.

Risks Inherent In An Investment In Our Common Units
Cost reimbursement due our general partner maybstantial and reduce our cash available to disttéto our unitholders.

Prior to making any distribution on the common sinite reimburse the general partner and its a#fidor reasonable costs and expenses
of management. The reimbursement of expenses aduwkersely affect our ability to pay cash distribns to our unitholders. Our general
partner has sole discretion to determine the amaofutiiese expenses, subject to the annual linb®6fof an amount primarily based on our
distributions to partners for that fiscal year. Hmnual limit includes carry-forward and cabgek features, which could allow costs in a yei
exceed what would otherwise be the annual reimngsélimit. In addition, our general partner argldffiliates may provide us with other
services for which we will be charged fees as deiteed by our general partner.

Our net income as reported for tax and financiatement purposes may differ significantly from cash flow that is used to determine ¢
available for distributions.

Net income as reported for financial statement pseg is presented on an accrual basis in confomiiityaccounting principles genera
accepted in the United States of America. UnithoKld tax statements are calculated based on agljdidax conventions, and taxable income
as calculated for each year will be allocated amaritholders who hold units on the last day of eexcinth. Distributions, however, are
calculated on the basis of actual cash receipg)gds in cash reserves, and disbursements dugmnglégvant reporting period. Consequently,
due to timing differences between the receipt otpeds of production and the point in time at whighproduction giving rise to those
proceeds actually occurs, net income reported otansolidated financial statements and on unitrokd1's will not reflect actual cash
distributions during that reporting period.

Our unitholders have limited voting rights and dmt nontrol our general partner, and their ability temove our general partner is limited.

Our unitholders have only limited voting rights wratters affecting our business. The general padheur general partner manages our
activities. Our unitholders only have the rightarmually elect the managers comprising the Advistmynmittee of the Board of Managers of
the general partner of our general partner. Ouhotders do not have the right to elect the othanagers of the general partner of our general
partner on an annual or any other basis.
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Our general partner may not be removed as our gepartner except upon approval by the affirmatiote of the holders of at least a
majority of our outstanding common units (includic@gmmon units owned by our general partner andffitisates), subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions. Our general partner and itdi@#s do not own sufficient common units to béeao prevent its removal as general partner,
but they do own sufficient common units to makergraoval of our general partner by other unithaddifficult.

These provisions may discourage a person or grmaup attempting to remove our general partner ougecontrol of us without the
consent of our general partner. As a result ofaheevisions, the price at which our common umslé may be lower because of the absen
reduction of a takeover premium in the trading gric

The control of our general partner may be transéerto a third party without unitholder consent.

Our general partner may withdraw or transfer itsegal partner interest to a third party in a meyan a sale of all or substantially all of
its assets without the consent of our unithold®ther than some transfer restrictions agreed tangrtize owners of our general partner relating
to their interests in our general partner, thempoigestriction in our partnership agreement oentlise for the benefit of our limited partners on
the ability of the owners of our general partnetrémsfer their ownership interests to a third yparhe new owner of the general partner would
then be in a position to replace the managemeotioPartnership with its own choices.

Our general partner and its affiliates have con8liof interests, which may permit our general partand its affiliates to favor their own
interests to the detriment of unitholders.

We and our general partner and its affiliates shemd therefore compete for, the time and effogenferal partner personnel who provide
services to us. Officers of our general partnerigmdffiliates do not, and are not required teergpany specified percentage or amount of time
on our business. In fact, our general partner tthgyato manage our Partnership in the best inteiour unitholders, but it also has a duty to
operate its business for the benefit of its pagn8ome of our officers are also involved in manag@ and ownership roles in other oil and
natural gas enterprises and have similar duti#iseim and devote time to their businesses. Becaese shared officers function as both our
representatives and those of our general partreeitaaffiliates and of third parties, conflictsinferest could arise between our general partner
and its affiliates, on the one hand, and us ormitholders, on the other, or between us or outhotders on the one hand and the third parties
for which our officers also serve management fuumsti As a result of these conflicts, our generdinga and its affiliates may favor their own
interests over the interests of unitholders.

We may issue additional securities, diluting ouithuwlders’ interests.

We can and may issue additional common units aner @apital securities representing limited paghigr units, including options,
warrants, rights, appreciation rights and secwritiéh rights to distributions and allocations weiiguidation equal or superior to our common
units; however, a majority of the unitholders maigprove such issuance if (i) the partnership sdesiio be issued will have greater rights or
powers than our common units or (ii) if after gigieffect to such issuance, such newly issued patiipesecurities represent over 20% of the
outstanding limited partnership interests.

If we issue additional common units, it will redumeér unitholders’ proportionate ownership inteii@stis. This could cause the market
price of the common units to fall and reduce theyrét cash distributions paid to our unitholddrsaddition, if we issued limited partnership
units with voting rights superior to the commontanit could adversely affect our unitholders’ wgtipower.

Our unitholders may not have limited liability imet circumstances described below and may be liablthe return of certain distributions.

Under Delaware law, our unitholders could be higtdlé for our obligations to the same extent asreegal partner if a court determined
that the right of unitholders to remove our gengeatner or to take other action under our partripragreement constituted participation in the
“control” of our business.
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Our general partner generally has unlimited ligdgfior the obligations of our Partnership, suclitaslebts and environmental liabilities,
except for those contractual obligations of outiRaship that are expressly made without recourslee general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revisaiform Limited Partnership Act provides that, endertain circumstances, a
unitholder may be liable for the amount of disttibn for a period of three years from the dateisfribution.

Because we conduct our business in various statsaws of those states may pose similar riskaitaunitholders. To the extent to
which we conduct business in any state, our urdérsl might be held liable for our obligations athéy were general partners if a court or
government agency determined that we had not cechplith that state’s partnership statute, or iftsgof unitholders constituted participation
in the “control” of our business under that stagastnership statute. In some of the states in e conduct business, the limitations on the
liability of limited partners for the obligationg a limited partnership have not been clearly digthed.

We are dependent upon key personnel, and the fegs\aces of any of our key personnel could adhgraffect our operations.

Our continued success depends to a consideraldataxton the abilities and efforts of the senionagement of our general partner,
particularly William Casey McManemin, its Chief Exgive Officer, James E. Raley, its Chief Operatbfficer, and H. C. Allen, Jr., its Chief
Financial Officer. The loss of the services of afiyhese key personnel could have a material adwffsct on our results of operations. We
have not obtained insurance or entered into empboyrmagreements with any of these key personnel.

We are dependent on service providers who assisttigroviding Schedule K-1 tax statements tounitholders.

There are a very limited number of service firmet tturrently perform the detailed computations eeed provide each unitholder with
estimated depletion and other tax information ®isashe unitholder in various United States incdenecomputations. There are also very few
publicly traded limited partnerships that need ¢hesrvices. As a result, the future costs and tivegs of providing Schedule Ktax statemen
to our unitholders is uncertain.

Tax Risks

The tax consequences to a unitholder of the owipeesid sale of common units will depend in parttoa unitholder’s tax circumstances.
Each unitholder should, therefore, consult suctthoider’s own tax advisor about the federal, stael local tax consequences of the
ownership of common units.

We have not received a ruling or assurances fran®RS or any state or local taxing authority on angtters affecting us.

We have not requested, and will not request, aliyg@rom the Internal Revenue Service, or IRSany state or local taxing authority
with respect to owning and disposing of our commpits or any other matter. It may be necessargdort to administrative or court
proceedings in an effort to sustain some or athose conclusions or positions taken or expresgad pand some or all of those conclusions or
positions ultimately may not be sustained. Ourhoiders and general partner will bear, directlynaiirectly, the costs of any contest with the
IRS or other taxing authority.

We will be subject to federal income tax and pdgsibrtain state corporate income or franchise &ieve are classified as a corporation
and not as a partnership for federal income taxgmses.

As stated above, we have not requested, and willegest, any ruling from the IRS as to our statua partnership for federal income
tax purposes. If the IRS were to challenge ourrf@dacome tax status, such a

13



Table of Contents

challenge could result in an audit of our unithodd¢ax returns and adjustments to items on tlaireturns that are unrelated to their
ownership of our common units. In addition, ourtboiders would bear the cost of any expenses iadur connection with an examination of
their personal tax returns.

If we were taxable as a corporation for federabime tax purposes in any taxable year, our incomiasglosses and deductions would be
reflected on our tax return rather than being matis®ugh proportionately to our unitholders, and wet income would be taxed at corporate
rates. In addition, some or all of the distribuanade to our unitholders would be treated as diddncome without offset for depletion, and
distributions would be reduced as a result of duefal, state and local taxes paid by us.

If we were taxable as a corporation for federabime tax purposes, we may also be subject to addlt&iate-level corporate income or
franchise taxes.

The IRS could reallocate items of income, gainudédn and loss between transferors and transfeocde®mmon units if the IRS does not
accept our monthly convention for allocating suemis.

In general, each of our items of income, gain, bosd deduction will, for federal income tax purpmdee determined annually, and one
twelfth of each annual amount will be allocatedhose unitholders who hold common units on theBasiness day of each month in that year.
In certain circumstances we may make these allmtsin connection with extraordinary or nonrecigravents on a more frequent basis. As a
result, transferees of our common units may becatld items of our income, gain, loss and deducgatized by us prior to the date of their
acquisition of our common units. There is no specitithority addressing the utilization of this mad of allocating items of income, gain, loss
and deduction by a publicly traded partnership saschs between transferors and transferees afritsnon units. If this method is determined
to be an unreasonable method of allocation, owmirg; gain, loss and deduction would be reallocatedng our unitholders and our general
partner, and our unitholders may have more taxableme or less taxable loss. Our general partnautisorized to revise our method of
allocation between transferors and transfereeselisas among our other unitholders whose commats mtherwise vary during a taxable
period, to conform to a method permitted or requivg the Internal Revenue Code and the regulatomslings promulgated thereunder.

Our unitholders may not be able to deduct lossethatable to their common units.

Any losses relating to our unitholders’ common sinill be losses related to portfolio income aneirtlability to use such losses may be
limited.

Our unitholders’ partnership tax information may &edited.

We will furnish our unitholders with a Schedule Kak statement that sets forth their allocableeslofincome, gains, losses and
deductions. In preparing this schedule, we will uagous accounting and reporting conventions aribus depreciation and amortization
methods we have adopted. This schedule may nat giedsult that conforms to statutory or regulatequirements or to administrative
pronouncements of the IRS. Further, our tax retuay be audited, and any such audit could resw@hiaudit of our unitholders’ individual
income tax returns as well as increased liabilfiiegdaxes because of adjustments resulting fragratidit. An audit of our unitholders’ returns
also could be triggered if the tax information tilg to their common units is not consistent whb Schedule K-1 that we are required to
provide to the IRS.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income o tagable loss with respect to their common ufitise IRS does not respect our method
for determining the adjusted tax basis of their oo units.

We have adopted a reporting convention that witlbd@ our unitholders to track the basis of thediviidual common units or unit groups
and use this basis in calculating their basis aufjeists under Section 743 of the Internal Revenude@md gain or loss on the sale of common
units. This method does not comply with an IRS
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ruling that requires a portion of the combinedhasis of all common units to be allocated to eddh@common units owned by a unitholder
upon a sale or disposition of less than all ofdbemon units and may be challenged by the IRSudhs challenge is successful, our
unitholders may have to recognize more taxablenmeor less taxable loss with respect to commorswidiposed of and common units they
continue to hold.

Tax-exempt investors may recognize unrelated bssitaxable income.

Generally, unrelated business taxable income, oFIU@an arise from a trade or business unrelatedg@xempt purposes of the tax-
exempt entity that is regularly carried on by eitthee tax-exempt entity or a partnership in which tax-exempt entity is a partner. However,
UBTI does not apply to interest income, royaltieel(iding overriding royalties) or net profits inésts, whether the royalties or net profits are
measured by production or by gross or taxable ircrom the property. Pursuant to the provisionswfpartnership agreement, our general
partner shall use all reasonable efforts to preusritom realizing income that would constitute UBR addition, our general partner is
prohibited from incurring certain types and amowftgxdebtedness and from directly owning workinterests or cost bearing interests and, in
the event that any of our assets become workimggests or cost bearing interests, is requireds@asuch interests to the operating partnel
subject to the reservation of a net profits ovémddoyalty interest. However, it is possible tiaat may realize income that would constitute
UBTI in an effort to maximize unitholder value.

Tax consequences of certain NPIs are uncertain.

We are prohibited from owning working interestscost-bearing interests. At the time of the creatibthe Minerals NPI, we assigned to
the operating partnership all rights in any suchking interests or cost-bearing interests that magitbsequently be created from the mineral
properties that were and are subject of the Misatl. As additional working interests and othestdmearing interests are created out of such
mineral properties, they are owned by the opergiangnership pursuant to such original assignraerd,we have executed various documents
since the creation of the Minerals NPI to confinnels treatment under the original assignment. Te&tinent could be characterized differently
by the IRS, and in such a case we are unable thgbrevith certainty, all of the income tax conseques relating to the Minerals NPI as it
relates to such working interests and other coatibg interests.

Our unitholders may not be entitled to deductiarspercentage depletion with respect to our oil avadural gas interests.

Our unitholders will be entitled to deductions foe greater of either cost depletion or (if othaevallowable) percentage depletion with
respect to the oil and natural gas interests oviayeas. However, percentage depletion is generabylable to a unitholder only if he qualifies
under the independent producer exemption contam#te Internal Revenue Code. For this purposéndependent producer is a person not
directly or indirectly involved in the retail sabé oil, natural gas, or derivative products or tiperation of a major refinery. If a unitholder does
not qualify under the independent producer exemptie generally will be restricted to deductionsdzhon cost depletion.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income & tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS dogsiccept our method of allocating
depletion deductions.

The Internal Revenue Code requires that income, ¢z8s and deduction attributable to appreciatatkpreciated property that is
contributed to a partnership in exchange for angaship interest in the partnership must be alextab that the contributing partner is charged
with, or benefits from, unrealized gain or unreadidoss, referred to as “Built-in Gain” and “Buift-Loss,” respectively, associated with the
property at the time of its contribution to thetparship. Our partnership agreement provides treattljusted tax basis of the oil and natura
properties contributed to us is allocated to thetiiouting partners for the purpose of separatelgdnining depletion deductions. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale of property contriloute us will be
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allocated to the partners that contributed the @rtypin proportion to their percentage interesthi@ contributed property, to take into account
any Built-in Gain or Built-in Loss. This method allocating Built-in Gain and Built-in Loss is nqtecifically permitted by United States
Treasury regulations, and the IRS may challengertidthod. Such a challenge, if successful, couldecaur unitholders to recognize more
taxable income or less taxable loss on an ongaasgshin respect of their common units.

Our unitholders may have more taxable income & tagable loss on an ongoing basis if the IRS do¢siccept our method of determining
a unitholder’s share of the basis of partnershipperty.

Our general partner utilizes a method of calcutpgach unitholder’s share of the basis of partiestoperty that results in an aggregate
basis for depletion purposes that reflects thelmse price of common units as paid by the unitholfleis method is not specifically authori:
under applicable Treasury regulations, and therf®$ challenge this method. Such a challenge, desgful, could cause our unitholders to
recognize more taxable income or less taxabledonsmn ongoing basis in respect of their commorsunit

The ratio of the amount of taxable income that fagllallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ctitt will be distributed to a unitholder
uncertain, and cash distributed to a unitholder nmay be sufficient to pay tax on the income wecalle to a unitholder.

The amount of taxable income realized by a unitkioWdill be dependent upon a number of factors idiclg: (i) the amount of taxable
income recognized by us; (ii) the amount of anyngatognized by us that is attributable to specifiset sales that may be wholly or partially
attributable to Built-in Gain and the resultingoaltion of such gain to a unitholder, dependinghenasset being sold; (iii) the amount of basis
adjustment pursuant to the Internal Revenue Codiade to a unitholder based on the purchase jfoicany common units and the amount
which such price was greater or less than a unidrd proportionate share of inside tax basis ofamsets attributable to the common units
when the common units were purchased; and (ivirte#hod of depletion available to a unitholder. Efiere, it is not possible for us to predict
the ratio of the amount of taxable income that élallocated to a unitholder to the amount of ¢hahwill be distributed to a unitholder.

A unitholder may lose his status as a partner afRartnership for federal income tax purposes ifiéreds our common units to a short se
to cover a short sale of such common units.

If a unitholder loans his common units to a sheles to cover a short sale of common units, he begonsidered as having disposed of
his ownership of those common units for federabine tax purposes. If so, the unitholder would maykr be a partner of our Partnership for
tax purposes with respect to those common uniteigtine period of the loan and may recognize gailoss from the disposition. As a result,
during this period, any of our income, gain, lossleduction with respect to those common units @awt be reportable, and any cash
distributions received for those common units wdugdfully taxable and may be treated as ordinacgrime.

If we are not notified (either directly or throughbroker) of a sale or other transfer of commonsirsome distributions and federal income
tax information or reports with respect to suchtamhay not be provided to the purchaser or othangferee of the units and may instead
continue to be provided to the original transferor.

If our transfer agent or any other nominee holdiagnmon units on behalf of a partner is not timedyified of a sale or other transfer of
common units, and a proper transfer of ownershiptsecorded on the appropriate books and receaase distributions and federal income
tax information or reports with respect to thesmown units may not be made or provided to the tesmes of the units and may instead
continue to be made or provided to the originatgfaror. Notwithstanding a transferee’s failureeoeive distributions and federal income tax
information or reports from us with respect to thesits, the IRS may contend that such transferaepartner for federal income tax purposes
and that some allocations of income, gain, losestuction by us
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should have been reported by such transferee.n@ltieely, the IRS may contend that the transfeamtioues to be a partner for federal income
tax purposes and that allocations of income, dags or deduction by us should have been repostedith transferor. If the transferor is not
treated as a partner for federal income tax puaagy cash distributions received by such transfeith respect to the transferred units
following the transfer would be fully taxable agliorary income to the transferor.

A sale or exchange of 50% or more of the totalradts in our capital and profits within a 12-mongtériod could result in adverse tax
consequences to a unitholder.

We will terminate for federal income tax purpodethére is a sale or exchange of 50% or more ofdte interests in our capital and
profits within a 12-month period. A termination wduesult in the closing of our taxable year farratholder. As a result, if a unitholder has a
different taxable year than we have, he may beireduo include his allocable share of our incogean, loss, deduction, credits and other
items from both the taxable year ending prior ®ykar of our termination and the short taxable geding at the time of our termination in
same taxable year. A termination also could réaydenalties if we were unable to determine thattdrmination occurred.

Foreign, state and local taxes could be withheldaorounts otherwise distributable to a unitholder.

A unitholder may be required to file tax returnsldre subject to tax liability in the foreign, statelocal jurisdictions where he resides
in each state or local jurisdiction in which we bassets or otherwise do business. We also masgbé@ed to withhold state income tax from
distributions otherwise payable to a unitholde atate income tax may be withheld by others omltgypayments to us.

Certain U.S. federal income tax deductions curseatlailable with respect to oil and natural gas kexption and development may be
eliminated as a result of future legislation.

The Proposed Fiscal Year 2011and 2012 Federal Bsidg#ude proposals that would, if enacted inte, Ilmake significant changes to
United States tax laws, including the eliminatidrcertain key U.S. federal income tax incentiveseutly available to oil and natural gas
exploration activities. These changes include g@atnot limited to, (i) the repeal of the perceetdgpletion allowance for oil and natural gas
properties, (ii) the elimination of current dedocis for intangible drilling and development coéiig), the repeal of the domestic manufacturing
tax deduction for oil and natural gas companied, (ar) an extension of the amortization perioddertain geological and geophysical
expenditures. It is unclear whether any such chamgiebe enacted or how soon any such changesldmmdome effective. The passage of any
legislation as a result of these proposals or ahgraimilar changes in U.S. federal income taxslaauld eliminate certain tax deductions that
are currently available to our unitholders andit@od natural gas operators that we rely uponetgetbp our properties. Such legislation or
changes could negatively impact both our unith@derd our Partnership financially.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report that are ndbtital facts (including any statements concermitegns and objectives of managemen
future operations or economic performance, or apsioms or forecasts related thereto), are forwaaking statements. These statements can
be identified by the use of forward-looking termiogy including “may,” “believe,” “will,” “expect,”“anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or
other similar words. These statements discussdigxpectations, contain projections of resultsperations or of financial condition or state
other forward-looking information.

These forward-looking statements are made based mpmagement’s current plans, expectations, eggnassumptions and beliefs
concerning future events impacting us and, theegfiovolve a number of risks and uncertainties.dAfation that forward-looking statements
are not guarantees and that actual results
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could differ materially from those expressed or liegbin the forward-looking statements for a numbkimportant reasons, including those
discussed under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere sreport.

You should read these statements carefully bedheyemay discuss our expectations about our fytaréormance, contain projections
our future operating results or our future finahciandition, or state other forward-looking infortitan. Before you invest, you should be aware
that the occurrence of any of the events hereiordesl in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this mtpould substantially harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition amat ipon the occurrence of any of these eventdrading price of our common units could
decline, and you could lose all or part of yourestment.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our office in Dallas consists of 11,847 square &ddeased office space. The operating partnersiips a field office in Hooker,
Oklahoma.

Properties
We own two categories of properties: Royalty Propsrand Net Profits Interests (“NPIs”).

Royalty Properties

We own Royalty Properties representing producirgdjraanproducing mineral, royalty, overriding royalhet profits and leasehold
interests in properties located in 574 countiesartshes in 25 states. Acreage amounts listedrhexpresent our best estimates based on
information provided to us as a royalty owner. Dmu¢he significant number of individual deeds, E=aand similar instruments involved in the
acquisition and development of the Royalty Propsrliy us or our predecessors, acreage amountskgeetsto change as new information
becomes available. In addition, as a royalty owoer,access to information concerning activity apdrations on the Royalty Properties is
limited. Most of our producing properties are sgbj® old leases and other contracts pursuant tohake are not entitled to well information.
Some of our newer leases provide for access tmigalhdata and other information. We may have kahiiccess to public data in some areas
through third party subscription services. Consatiyethe exact number of wells producing from afliig on the Royalty Properties is not
determinable. The primary manner by which we wéltbme aware of activity on the Royalty Propertiethe receipt of division orders or other
correspondence from operators or purchasers.

Acreage Summary

The following table sets forth as of December 31,® a summary of our gross and net, where appicabres of mineral, royalty,
overriding royalty and leasehold interests, andraglation of the number of counties and parishresstates in which these interests are
located. The majority of our net mineral acreswarieased. Acreage amounts may not add across dwetiapping ownership among
categories.

Overriding
Mineral Royalty Royalty Leaseholc Total
Number of State 25 17 17 8 25
Number of Counties/Parish 46E 19C 137 34 574
Gross Acre 2,308,02. 616,54: 208,75! 36,521 3,119,52!
Net Acres (where applicabl 377,70° — — — 377,70°

18



Table of Contents

Our net interest in production from royalty, ovdinig royalty and leasehold interests is based aseleoyalty and other third-party
contractual terms, which vary from property to pdp. Consequently, net acreage ownership in tbasgories is not determinable. Our net
interest in production from properties in which oxen a royalty or overriding royalty interest maydféected by royalty terms negotiated by
the mineral interest owners in such tracts and thssees. Our interest in the majority of thesgperties is perpetual in nature. However, a
minor portion of the properties are subject to &and conditions pursuant to which a portion ofiaterest may terminate upon cessation of
production.

The following table sets forth, as of December211,0, the combined summary of total gross andwie¢(e applicable) acres of mineral,
royalty, overriding royalty and leasehold intereateach of the states in which these interestéoasted.

State Gross Net State Gross Net
Alabama 105,19: 7,794 Missouri 344 43
Arkansas 47,21¢ 15,64¢ Montana 281,89( 62,85(
California 1,451 162 Nebraske 3,36( 287
Colorado 22,88( 1,42¢ New Mexico . 42,41( 2,81«
Florida 88,83: 25,26 New York 23,077 18,86:
Georgia 3,67¢ 1,28¢ North Dakote 292,77 46,07:
Illinois 4,72¢ 88t Oklahomsa 230,40( 16,97:
Indiana 303 142 Pennsylvania 9,51z 5,631
Kansas 13,98: 2,38¢ South Dakotz 14,407 1,26¢
Kentucky 1,99 67€ Texas 1,641,19 151,95!
Louisiana 131,07! 2,52( Utah 5,937 20C
Michigan 54,23« 2,62 Wyoming 26,627 1,31¢
Mississippi 72,02¢ 8,622

Leasing Activity

The operating partnership and we received cash gatmin the amount of $3,862,000 during 2010 attable to lease bonus on 97 lee
and six pooling elections in lands located in 3@rdes and parishes in eight states. These leafiested bonus payments ranging up to
$5,010/acre and initial royalty terms ranging uj268%6.

The operating partnership and we received cash gatmin the amount of $22,000 during the fourthrtaraof 2010 attributable to lease
bonus on nine leases of our interests in landgddda five counties and parishes in four staté®sE leases reflected bonus payments ranging
up to $2,000/acre and initial royalty terms rangimpgto 25%.

The following table sets forth a summary of leased pooling elections consummated during 2008 gind2010.

2010 2009 2008
Consummated Leas

Number 1032 53 51
Number of State 8 4 4
Number of Countie 32 22 19
Average Royalty 24.&% 23.4&% 25.(%
Average Bonus, $/aci $ 1,70¢ $ 56t $ 39¢
Total Lease Boni—cash basi $3,862,00! $663,00( $441,00(

Amounts reflected above may differ from our cordated financial statements, which are presenteghaaccrual basis. Some activity
may be in Net Profits Interests income. Averagatyyand average bonus exclude
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amounts attributable to pooling elections. Paymestsived for gas storage, shut-in and delay rgragmnents, coal royalty, surface use
agreements, litigation judgments and settlementgeds are reflected in our consolidated finan¢&esents in various categories including,
but not limited to, other operating revenues areoincome.

Net Profits | nterests

We own net profits overriding royalty interestsféreed to as the Net Profits Interests, or “NPIg"yarious properties owned by the
operating partnership. We receive monthly paymeqtgling 96.97% of the net profits actually realiby the operating partnership from th
properties in the preceding month. In the eventscesceed revenues on a cash basis in a given rfamhoperties subject to a Net Profits
Interest, no payment is made and any deficit isiiaedated and carried over and reflected in thefadihg month’s calculation of net profit.

We own six separate NPIs. Four were created inextion with the combination in 2003, one immateNat Profits Interest was
subsequently created and is currently in deficitf ane was acquired with the acquisition of Maesévimerals LLP on March 31, 2010. Four
of these NPIs have been in a continuous profitistather than temporary deficits in that revenwegslexceeded costs and cash payments havi
been made by the operating partnership to us eaattey. The purpose of such NPIs is to avoid thiégigation as a working interest or other
cost-bearing owner that could result in unrelatesitess taxable income. Net profits interest paysere not considered unrelated business
taxable income for tax purposes. The Net Profitsrist referred to as the Minerals NPI has contislyohad costs that exceed revenues. As of
December 31, 2010, cumulative operating and dewedop costs presented in the following table, whincthude amounts equivalent to an
interest charge, exceeded cumulative revenuesdfltherals NPI, resulting in a cumulative defiéitl cumulative deficits (which represent
cumulative excess of operating and developmensaoatr revenue received) are borne 100% by ourrgkepartner until the Minerals NPI
recovers the deficit amount. Once in profit status will receive the Net Profits Interest paymaeaitsibutable to these properties. Our
consolidated financial statements do not refletiviag attributable to properties subject to NFiat are in a deficit statu€onsequently, net
profits interest payments, production sales volumeand prices, and oil and natural gas reserves setrth in other portions of this annual
report do not reflect amounts attributable to the Minerals NPI, which includes all of the operating panership’s Fayetteville Shale
working interest properties in Arkansas.

The following tables set forth cash receipts argthdisements, production volumes and reservesiatifite to the Minerals NPI from
inception through 2005 and the calendar years #@bigh 2010.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Result
Year Ended December 31,
(in Thousands)

Inception
Through
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

Cash received for reveni $2,45¢ $2,487 $3,25¢ $6,01€¢ $3,40¢ $7,901 $25,52¢
Cash paid for operating co 40C 452 521 853 86& 1,732 4,82:
Cash paid for development co 2,62( 1,691 2,63t 4,77¢ 4,34¢ 3,24¢ 19,32:
Budgeted capital expenditur 90t 89C 2,63( 4,42¢
Net cash (paid) receive $ (562 $ 344 $ 99 $(5200 (2,69 $ 29C $(3,049
Cumulative NPI Defici $ (562) $ (218 $ (119 $(63%) $(3,339) $(3,049
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The revenue amounts, the production volumes, amgribwved reserves presented include only propgatiducing revenue. The
development cost amounts pertain to more propdfsasthe properties producing revenue due to tidifferences between operating
partnership expenditures and oil and natural gadymtion and payments to the operating partnership.

Minerals NPI Cash Basis Production
Year ended December 31,

Inception
through
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total
Natural Gas mc 264,82« 190,901 291,27¢ 418,74 596,34 957,17¢ 2,719,26!
Oil & Condensate bk 14,54¢ 17,447 19,66: 22,48( 21,10¢ 53,36¢ 148,61
Indicated Gas Price, $/m $ 726 $ 658 $ 855 $ 374 $ 41z % 5.4
Indicated Qil/Cond. Price, $/b $ 61.08 $ 629 $1009¢ $ 488( $ 715 % 68.0¢

The indicated prices set forth above are calculbtedividing each yeas’ gross revenues for each product by the produgthmme of the
corresponding product. Cash received for revencledes minor amounts of non-product revenue. Saftulation does not necessarily reflect
contractual terms for sales and may be affectetidngportation costs, location differentials, giyadind gravity adjustments and timing
differences between production and cash receiptgiding release of suspended funds, initial payséar accumulated sales, or prior period
adjustments.

All Proved Developed and Minerals NPI Reserves
Located in the United States Year ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Proved Reserve
Natural Gas (mmci® 278 313 532 1,44 1,99: 3,01¢ 4,26(
Oil & Condensate (mbbl«®) 7 32 46 34 65 65 17¢
Future Net Revenues ($ in thousar® $1,352  $3,39¢  $4,30¢ $10,52¢ $9,341 $8,95( $30,35:
Standardized Measure ($ in thousar® $1,03: $2,65¢F $3,40t $ 7,250 $6,53: $6,451 $14,02¢

(1) Based on 1-month unweighted arithmetic average of the first-of-the-month price of oil and natural gas in 2009 forwartherwise based on y~end pricing of oil and natural g.

Amounts in the above tables reflect the operatengnership’s ownership of the subject propertiest Rrofits Interest payments to us, if
any, will equal 96.97% of the cumulative net pofictually received by the operating partnerstiibatable to the subject properties. The
above production sales volumes, indicated pricésnd natural gas reserves, and financial inforomaattributable to the Minerals NP1 may
be indicative of future results of the Minerals Nfald may not indicate when the deficit status maand when NPI payments may begin f
the Minerals NPI.

The Minerals NPI includes numerous opportunitiegstie operating partnership to participate as &imgrinterest owner in drilling
activity on lands in which we owned a mineral oyalty interest as of the date such Minerals NPI erasted. Most of these opportunities are
evidenced by a contractual option, but not thegattion, to participate in activity located in defthlands and leases, although some arise by
non-contractual means or by operation of law. ikttpard to the opportunities evidenced by a contedaption, the operating partnership’s
decision to exercise these options and particiasit@ working interest owner is made on a well-byl-basis and only in the event a third party
proposes to drill a well subject to the contractyation. With regard to the opportunities to papéte as a working interest owner that arise
non-contractually or by operation of law, we obtarmare provided those opportunities due to thmastof persons that we do not control.
Thus, we are unable to project when wells may bkedy whether the operating partnership may diegarticipate, or otherwise end up
participating, in such drilling or the magnitudetbé corresponding investment, either individuallyin the aggregate, with respect to the
Minerals NPI. In the event the operating partngrshi
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does elect to participate pursuant to these optmmatherwise ends up so participating per forfceeotain non-contractual relationships or by
operation of law, the Minerals NPI deficit balansdikely to increase. Regardless of the opergpagnership’s future voluntary or involuntary
participation, we believe initial net profits ingst payments made upon the Minerals NPI's firsthizay profit status, if any, will be
insignificant due to our expectation that the ofiegapartnership will continue to incur developmerpenditures for at least the next five ye
See the discussion under “Drilling Activity” beldar additional information on some of these workintgrest participation options and
possibilities.

Acreage Summary

The following tables set forth, as of DecemberZ11,0, information concerning properties owned k&ydperating partnership and sub
to the NPlIs, including the Minerals NPI propertidsreage amounts listed under “Leasehold” refleosg acres leased by the operating
partnership and the working interest share (nets3dn those properties. Acreage amounts listeéufMdineral” reflect gross acres in which
the operating partnership owns a mineral interedtthe undivided mineral interest (net acres) oséhproperties. The operating partnership’s
interest in these properties may be unleased,ddasethers or a combination thereof. Acreage artsonmay not add across due to overlapping
ownership among categories. In addition to amolistesd below, the operating partnership owns irgrémited to certain wellbores located
lands in which we own mineral, royalty or leasehiokgrests. The acreage amounts associated witheligore interests are included in
Royalty Properties Acreage Summary and not indb&tbelow.

Mineral Royalty Leasehold Total
Number of State 12 2 6 12
Number of Counties/Parish 60 2 13 66
Gross Acres 49,18¢ 64C 110,67 160,50:
Net Acres 7,26( — 84,27: 91,53:

The following table reflects the states in whick #creage amounts listed above are located.

Mineral/Royalty Leasehold Total
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Oklahoma 11,20( 95t 80,18: 74,05¢ 91,38: 75,011
Kansas 64C 20 7,03¢ 7,03¢ 7,67¢ 7,05¢
Arkansas 67¢ 30¢ 19,781 2,631 20,46¢ 2,94t
All Others 37,30¢ 5,971 3,67( 544 40,97¢ 6,521
Totals 49,82¢ 7,26( 110,67: 84,27 160,50: 91,53

The operating partnership owns working interestevia¢he currently producing horizons in 47,360 gfd$,960 net acres in Texas
County, Oklahoma. The operating partnership has fime to time farmed out its leasehold interestgdrtions of these lands, reserving an
overriding royalty interest therein, and will codesi additional exploration or development of thiesels as circumstances warrant. The
leasehold acreage includes all of the acreageeifrdlyetteville Shale properties of Arkansas in Whie have the right to participate.
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Costs Incurred

The following table sets forth information regamlit00% of the costs incurred on a cash basis bgpkeating partnership during the
periods indicated in connection with the propertiaderlying the NPIs.

Years ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008

(in thousands)
Acquisition costs $ — $ — $ —
Development cosi® 3,26¢ 4,371 5,31F
Total $3,26¢ $4,371 $5,31¢

(1) The years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 26lL@&$4,793,000, $4,348,000 and $3,249,000, réisphe attributable to NPIs not yet in pay stat

Productive Well Summary

The following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ110, the combined number of producing wells orptteperties subject to the NPIs,
including the Minerals NPI. Gross wells refer tollén which a working interest is owned. Net wedle determined by multiplying gross we
by the working interest in those wells.

Productive
Wells/Units (1)
Location Gross Net
Oklahoma 201 120.<
Kansas 20 20.C
All others _32¢ 15.2
Total 544 155.¢

(1) Multiple well units operated by someone other ttrenoperating partnership and in which we own Nfésincluded as one gross wi

Drilling Activity

We received division orders for or otherwise idfted 348 new wells completed on our Royalty Prapsrin 10 states during 2010. Fifty-
seven new wells were completed on our NPI propeiti?010. We identified eight wells that were cdetgd in prior years, and an additional
20 wells were in various stages of drilling or cdetipn operations at yeand. Selected new wells and the royalty interestsea by us and tl
working and net revenue interests owned by theatipey partnership are summarized below.
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This table does not include wells drilled in they&eville Shale trend as they are detailed intsssquent discussion and table.

DMOLP Test Rates per day
County/ DMLP Gas, Qil,
ST Parish Operator Well Name NRI @) wi (1) NRI @ mcf bbls
AR Logan Highland Oil & Gas Gregory #4 3.125% 3.12%% 1,35¢
AR Logan SEECO Johns #-4H3 3.08%6 3.08%% 11,28¢
AR Logan Highland Oil & Gas Morris #2 3.125%% 3.12"% 1,35¢
LA De Soto Comstock Oil & Gas  HA RA SUA; 2.73% 2,03:
Collins LA 15 HZ Z-Alt
MT Richland Continental Resource Carda #-28H 6.25(% 5.93%% 91 22¢€
ND Dunn ConocoPhillips Intervale 4-35H 3.728% 257 823
ND Mountrail Fidelity Expl & Prod Deadwood Canyon Ranch-33H 0.99%% 707 777
ND Mountrail Fidelity Expl & Prod Deadwood Canyon Ranch-32H 1.03¢% 70€ 904
ND Mountrail Fidelity Expl & Prod Deadwood Canyon Ranch-34H 2.01% 63€ 997
ND Williams  Brigham Oil & Gas Owar-Nehring 2°-34 1H 0.30¢€% 1,78% 2,21¢
OK Caddo St. Mary Land & Expl Reiss Trust #-16 1.31% 1.31% 8,49¢
TX Crockett  Walter Oil & Gas Corp Elliott, M #2H 3.301% 3.301% 1,26t
TX Dawson Fasken Oil and Ranc  Jacksonville Colleg“9” #1 6.25(% 73 147
TX Hidalgo Shell Expl & Proc Woods Christian #4 2.73%% 1,51¢
TX San Jacint Famcor QOil, Inc Vann #3 2.50(% 1,70C
TX Starr RAM Operating Garza Hitchcock #1 2.65% 2,187
TX Starr Cactus Rose, LL( Guerra #2 7.041% 197
TX Tarrant Chesapeake Operatii  Duck Lake #8F 17.069% 3,971
TX Tarrant Chesapeake Operatii  Duck Lake #10+ 17.06% 3,45¢
TX Tarrant Chesapeake Operatii Duck Lake #11F 17.069% 3,507
TX Wood Energy Prod Cory SASI Ranch #2 S’ 3.22% 11& 421

(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapartnership and subject to the Net Profits Irste

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&itaoyalty interest or to the operating partnes’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Net Profits Interes
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Additional information concerning selected recesttvity is summarized below:

Fayetteville Shale Trend of Northern ArkansagVe own varying undivided perpetual mineral intésdetaling 23,336/11,464 gross/net
acres located in Cleburne, Conway, Faulkner, Frapkbhnson, Pope, Van Buren, and White countielsadsas in an area commonly referred
to as the “Fayetteville Shale” trend of the ArkoBesin. Two hundred eighty-nine wells have been ft&gthon the lands as of December 31,
2010, of which the operating partnership has agrést in 182. In total, 254 wells had been spuf,i2dd been completed as producers and 20
were in various stages of drilling or completioremations. Wells that have been proposed to besdrilly the operator but for which permits
have not yet been issued by the Arkansas Oil & Gaamission are not reflected in this number. Addéaest results for wells completed in
2010, along with ownership interests owned by usiaterests owned by the operating partnershipestitp the Minerals NPI, are summarized
in the following table.

DMOLP Gas Test Rate
DMLP

County Operator Well Name NRI @) wi @) NRI ) Mcf per day
Conway SEECO Bryant ¢-15 #£-32H30 4.79% 4.72:% 3.57% 5,38¢
Conway SEECO Criswell €&-14 #z-29H 1.56%% 1.25(% 0.93t% 4,62
Conway Chesapeake Operati  Georgia Brown -16 #1-36H 5.85%% 5.10(% 3.83(% 2,72¢
Conway Chesapeake Operatt  Govan -15 #1-6H 2.26% 4.231% 3.181% 4,01¢
Conway SEECO Howell 7-16 #1-1H 2.35% 4.39%% 3.295% 3,87¢
Conway Chesapeake Operatt  Merideth °-16 #z-2H 0.781% 7,251
Conway SEECO Polk €15 #5-30H 5.93(% 5.561% 4.24%% 3,33«
Conway SEECO William Gray 7-15 #1-18H 0.781% 6,48
Faulkner SEECO Krisell Trust i-14 #1-3H 2.34% 4.75¢% 3.57t% 6,451
Faulkner Chesapeake Operat  Lagasse Investments In¢-12 #1-8H 7.61% 5.000% 3.75(% 1,55¢
Faulkner Chesapeake Operat.  Lagasse Investments In¢-12 #2-8H 7.61% 1,82:
Faulkner Chesapeake Operati  Lagasse Investments Inc¢-12 #:-8H 7.61% 2,09¢
Faulkner Chesapeake Operati  Lane 12 #1-8H 7.61% 5.00(% 3.75(% 1,01¢
Faulkner Chesapeake Operati  Lane 12 #.-8H 7.61% 5.000% 3.75(% 1,84
Faulkner SEECO Ralph Taylor -12 #1-20H 2.461% 4.84%% 3.63% 1,87¢
Van Burer SEECO Alice Mobbs 1(-13 #1-19H 1.552% 1.242% 0.931% 6,95(
Van Burer SEECO Betty Graddy Trust 1-12 #3-15H16 1.47% 2.36€% 1.77%% 4,26
Van Burer SEECO David Brown 13 #-13H24 0.91&% 1.486% 1.119% 5,24
Van Burer SEECO Hillis 10-16 #&-27H 6.25(% 6.25(% 1,85¢
Van Burer  XTO Energy Roe Reynolds-12 #1-27H22 3.105% 3.312% 2.48% 2,01t
White SEECO Riley S-6 #1-22H 3.125% 5.00(% 3.75(% 1,71¢
White SEECO Riley S-6 #:-22H15 2.64% 4.23t% 3.17% 4,35¢
White SEECO Riley S-6 #£-22H15 2.50&% 4.01%% 3.01(% 4,352
White SEECO Riley S-6 #£-22H15 2.67% 4.282% 3.212% 3,41

(1) WI means the working interest owned by the opegapiartnership and subject to the Minerals P

(2) NRI means the net revenue interest attributab&itaoyalty interest or to the operating partney’s royalty and working interest, which is subjecthe Minerals NPI

Set forth below is a summary of Fayetteville Stadvity through December 31, 2010 for wells in efhive have a royalty or Net Profits
Interest. This includes wells subject to the MitefdPI, which is currently in deficit status.

2004 Total
through

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 to
2007 2006  200¢ 201 201 201 201  Date

New Well Permits 47 66 69 23 19 31 34 28¢
Wells Spuc 41 62 70 23 15 26 17 254
Wells with First Productiol 27 53 49 13 33 18 26 21¢
Royalty Wells in Pay Statu® 6 30 54 10 14 20 25 15¢

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated peri
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Our estimated proved reserves as of December 30, 2@clude reserves attributable to our royalteiiest in 195 wells totaling 4.05 bcf.
Proved reserves attributable to working interestsed by the operating partnership totaled 3.74rb&R7 wells. These estimates only include
wells for which test rates have been obtained.

Net cash receipts for the Royalty Properties atteble to interests in these lands totaled $2,&@i® 2010 from 159 wells. Net cash
receipts for the Minerals NPI properties attriblgaio interests in these lands totaled $2,458,a@DI1L0 from 85 wells. Fourth quarter net cash
receipts for the Royalty Properties and the MireeNi#P| properties totaled $706,000 from 158 welld $&78,000 from 83 wells, respectively.

Horizontal Bakken, Williston Basi-We own varying undivided perpetual mineral intésestaling 70,390/8,905 gross/net acres located
in Burke, Divide, Dunn, McKenzie, Mountrail and \idims Counties, North Dakota. Operators activénia area include Continental
Resources, EOG Resources, Hess Corporation, Mar@h&ompany, and Whiting Oil & Gas. There havema total of 62 wells permitted
on these lands as of December 31, 2010 with 97 xetpas producers. In virtually all cases we heleeted not to lease our lands and not to
pay our share of well costs, thus becoming a navs@ating mineral owner. According to North Daka@a | non-consenting owners receive the
average royalty rate from the date of first productaind back-in for their full working interest efthe operator has recovered 150% of drilling
and completion costs. Once 150% payout occursytnking interest will be owned by the operatingtparship and subject to the Minerals
NPI. Nor-consenting owners are not entitled to well dateepthan public information available from the NoBakota Industrial Commission.
As of December 31, 2010, six of these wells hadeseld 150% payout.

Set forth below is a summary of Horizontal Bakketivéty through December 31, 2010 for wells in whiwe have a royalty or Net
Profits Interest. This includes wells subject te Minerals NPI, which is currently in a deficit &ta.

2004

through Total

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 to
2007 200€  200¢  201C  201C 201 201C  Date

New Well Permits 17 45 22 6 18 6 18 132
Wells Spuc 14 26 31 7 16 12 9 11¢&
Wells Complete 9 22 32 9 6 12 7 97
Wells in Pay Statu® 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 6

(1) Wells in Pay Status means wells for which revenas initially received during the indicated peri

Appalachian Basir—We own varying undivided perpetual mineral intesestapproximately 31,000/24,000 gross/net acrd®inountie
in southern New York and northern Pennsylvania.rApimately 75% of these net acres are located steea Allegany and western Steuben
Counties, New York, an area which some industrgpreports suggest may be prospective for gas gtiodurom unconventional reservoirs,
including the Marcellus Shale. The New York StagpBrtment of Environmental Conservation has resttipermitting in the Marcellus shale
pending a regulatory review of high-volume hydreditacturing practices. Development of these natyaa resources will be limited until this
regulatory issue has been resolved. We continugotator industry activity and encourage dialoguéhimdustry participants to determine the
proper course of action regarding our interesthigmarea.

Barnett Shale—We own producing and nonproducing mineral and ltgyaterests located in Tarrant County, Texas. plaperties
consist of varying undivided mineral and overridiogalty interests in six tracts totaling approxteig 1,820 acres in what is commonly
referred to as the Core Area of the Barnett Shedad. All of the mineral interests were leasedd02to a predecessor of Chesapeake Energy
Corporation, the current operator of and majorityking interest owner in the properties. Approxietat577 acres of the subject lands are
pooled into six units totaling 1,800 acres; appmatiely 1,129 acres are developed on a lease bastha remaining lands are leased but not
pooled or drilled upon. As of December 31, 2010y4lls were drilled from
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11 padsites located on or adjacent to the properiewhich 32 wells were completed for productéomd eight were drilled but not yet
completed or connected to a pipeline. Permits itbfdur additional wells on the properties had begsued by regulatory agencies.

Granite Wash, Texas PanhandieéWe own varying undivided perpetual mineral intésdstaling 16,336/2,559 gross/net acres in
Hemphill, Roberts and Wheeler Counties, Texas. @ipes active in this area include Apache Corporatiechesapeake Operating, Forest Oil,
Linn Energy, Newfield Exploration, and QEP Resosrde 2010, we leased 680 net acres to two pdrtiego transactions for 25% royalty a
total bonus consideration of $2,892,560. As of Datwer 31, 2010, two horizontal well permits had bgeamted on the leased lands.

Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

The following table reflects the Partnersisiproved developed and total proved reserves arbleer 31, 2010. The reserves are base
the reports of two independent petroleum engingesonsulting firms: Calhoun, Blair & Associates draRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.
As described above, the Partnership does not Indeeriation that would be available to a companyhwil and natural gas operations because
detailed information is not generally availableoteners of royalty interests. The Partnership’s eegiing manager gathers production
information and provides such information to ouotwdependent engineering consulting firms whoapdtate from such information
estimates of the reserves attributable to the Rpyabperties and NPIs based on their expertiskedroil and natural gas fields where the
Royalty Properties and NPIs are situated, as vggtidblicly available information. Ensuring complianwith generally accepted petroleum
engineering and evaluation methods and procedsitee iresponsibility of the Partnership’s enginggrnanager. Our engineering manager has
a bachelor’s degree in Petroleum Engineering floenUniversity of Alberta and has worked in the tgmin oil and natural gas business in
various capacities since 1996. The engineering gem@ports directly to the chief executive officBur chief executive officer ensures
compliance with SEC guidance. He received his Blaclu Science degree in Petroleum Engineering ficaras A&M University in 1984 an
has been a Registered Professional Engineer insT@ree 1988. Calhoun Blair & Associates is registevith the Engineering Board of the
State of Texas and has been engaged in the busihe#sind natural gas property evaluation sin888lL LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd.
is registered with the Engineering Board of theeStd Texas. The LaRoche Firm has been engagéxtihusiness of oil and natural gas
property evaluation since its formation in 197%@&tthan those filed with the SEC, our estimatex/@d reserves have not been filed with or
included in any reports to any federal agency. €spif the reports prepared by Calhoun, Blair & Agses and LaRoche Petroleum
Consultants, Ltd. are attached hereto as ExhiBits &nd 99.2.

Summary of Oil and Gas Reserves as of Fiscal Yeam#

All Proved Developed and located
in the United States
Net Profit&) Interests

Royalty Properties Total

Natural Natural Natural

Qil Gas Qil Gas Qil Gas

Reserves Category (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf) (mbbls) (mmcf)
2010 3,29( 36,93! 43 24,74¢ 3,33¢ 61,67¢
2009 3,231 34,92 40 25,357 3,27 60,28(
2008@ 3,514 32,02¢ 56 28,94¢ 3,57( 60,97

(1) Reserves reflect 96.97% of the corresponding anscasgigned to the operating partner's interests in the properties underlying the NefirInterests
(2) Based on yeend oil and natural gas pric

Proved oil and natural gas reserves means theastinguantities of crude oil, natural gas, andmahgas liquids which geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable ogrtim be recoverable in future
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years from known reservoirs under existing econamnit operating conditions, i.e., 12 month unweidlethmetic average of the first day
the month prices and costs as of the date the &stiimn made. Previously, year-end pricing and ceste used. Please see Management’'s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations—Results of Operations foraye sales prices.

The Hugoton Field reflected in the Net Profits hatts above is the only significant field, defiredmore than 15% of total proved
developed reserves. Hugoton Field production (at®s3 for the last three years is listed below:

Production by Significant Field

Numbers in Thousands

MCF BOE
2010 3,65¢ 60¢
2009 3,94 65€
2008 4,24( 707

Title to Properties

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of assets. Record title to essentially all of ouetsshas undergone the appropriate filings in
the jurisdictions in which such assets are locaf@te to property may be subject to encumbran@és believe that none of such encumbrances
should materially detract from the value of ourg@dies or from our interest in these propertiestmuld materially interfere with their use in
the operation of our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oktaa regarding the use of natural gas from the virllesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties formerly ovimyeldorchester Hugoton. These properties contributejor portion of the NPI amounts
paid to us. On April 9, 2007, plaintiffs, for imneaial costs, dismissed with prejudice all claimaiagt the operating partnership regarding such
residential gas use. On October 4, 2004, the fffgifited severed claims against the operatingngship regarding royalty underpayments,
which the Texas County District Court subsequedigynissed with a grant of time to replead. On Jan@a, 2006, one of the original plainti
again sued the operating partnership for underpayofaoyalty, seeking class action certificati@n October 1, 2007, the Texas County
District Court granted the operating partnershipttion for summary judgment finding no royalty ungeeyments. Subsequently, the District
Court denied the plaintiff's motion for reconsidgéwa, and the plaintiff filed an appeal. On March 2010, the appeal decision reversed and
remanded to the Texas County District Court to Ikesmaterial issues of fact. A hearing regarding lquested class action certification is set
for late July, 2011. No court hearing has beendualeel on the merits. An adverse decision could cecimounts we receive from the NPIs.

The Partnership and the operating partnershipnar@vied in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesigmificant effect on financial position
or operating results.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED]
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED UNITHOLDER MATTERS AND ISS UER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common units began trading on the NASDAQ Natidarket (now the NASDAQ Global Select Market) lBebruary 3, 2003. The
following summarizes the high and low sales infaiorafor the common units for the period indicatéte information below reflects inter-
dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-dowrcommission and may not necessarily represent atrhradactions.

2010 2009
High Low High Low
First Quartel $23.8¢ $20.5( $20.4( $14.3i
Second Quarte $28.1¢ $21.0¢ $23.0: $16.0¢
Third Quartel $27.3( $23.6¢€ $25.7¢ $21.0¢
Fourth Quarte $29.4: $25.0( $23.8¢ $20.01

As of December 31, 2010, there were 14,777 commdithalders.

Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003ggsired by our partnership agreement, we disteithand will continue to distribute,
on a quarterly basis, within 45 days of the enthefquarter, all of our available cash. Availakdstt means all cash and cash equivalents on
hand at the end of that quarter, less any amoucasif reserves that our general partner deternsimesessary or appropriate to provide for
conduct of its business or to comply with appliealalws or agreements or obligations to which we bwgubject.

Unitholder cash distributions per common unit fog past four years have been:

Per Unit Amount

2010 2009 2008 2007
First Quarte! $0.44922; $0.40120! $0.57230! $0.461141
Second Quarte $0.41220 $0.27135. $0.76920! $0.47374!
Third Quartel $0.47108: $0.28696! $0.94847. $0.56050:
Fourth Quarte $0.35407. $0.321541 $0.54208. $0.51462!

Distributions beginning with the first quarter @310 were paid on 30,675,431 units; distributiosrfithe second quarter of 2009 through
the fourth quarter of 2009 were paid on 29,84041s; previous distributions above were paid 0r228,431 units. Fourth quarter
distributions are paid in February of the followioglendar year to unitholders of record in Janaardyebruary of such following year. The
partnership agreement requires the next cashhlisin to be paid by May 15, 2011.

Please see “Fourth Quarter 2010 Distribution Ingiddrice” discussion contained in “ltem 7.— Managet's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsgtlidlity and Capital Resources—Distributions” fooguction periods and cash receipts
and weighted average prices corresponding to tiwtHf@uarter 2010 distribution.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofammmon units with the performance of the NASDAQQasite Index (the
“NASDAQ Index”) and a peer group index from Decem®#, 2005 through December 31, 2010. The grapimass that at the beginning of
the period, $100 was invested in each of (1) oumroon units, (2) the NASDAQ Index, and (3) the pgrup, and that all distributions or
dividends were reinvested. We do not believe thgtpublished industry or line-dfusiness index accurately reflects our businessoringly,
we have created a special peer group index camgisficompanies whose royalty trust units are pliptraded on the New York Stock
Exchange. Our peer group index includes the ufitseofollowing companies: Cross Timbers Royaltyudir Mesa Royalty Trust, Sabine
Royalty Trust, Permian Basin Royalty Trust, HugoRwyalty Trust and the San Juan Basin Royalty Trust

60-Month Cumulative Total Returns
Valuie of 5100 lnvested on Decamber 31, 2005
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ITEM 6.
Basis of Presentation

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

This table should be read in conjunction with thasolidated financial statements and related rintdgded elsewhere in this document.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31
(in thousands, except per unit data)

Total operating revenus

Depreciation, depletion and amortizati

Net earning:

Net earnings per unit (basic and dilut
Cash distribution®

Cash distributions per ur®

Total asset

Total liabilities

Partner’ capital

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
$ 61,09 $ 43,63 $ 89,92¢ $ 65,36¢ $ 74,927
17,98¢ 15,59¢ 14,73¢ 15,567 18,47(
34,88 21,68: 66,78 43,04¢ 50,21(
111 0.7z 2.3C 1.4¢ 1.72
52,19¢ 44,72¢ 81,64¢ 57,40 82,29t
1.65 1.5C 2.8C 1.97 2.8¢
153,11: 152,76¢ 139,56: 154,25: 168,42¢
71C 737 98C 804 62¢
152,40: 152,03: 138,58: 153,44 167,80(

(1) Because of depletion (which is usually highrethie early years of production), a portion of gwdistribution of revenues from properties représenreturn of a limited partner’s

original investment. Until a limited partner reaesvcash distributions equal to his original investtmin certain circumstances, 100% of such distidms may be deemed to be a return

of capital. Cash distributions by year excludeftheth quarter distribution declared in Januaryhef following year, but include the prior year ftiuquarter distribution declared in

January of the current yei
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2010 Overview

Our results during 2010 were strong despite coetimoor natural gas prices and reduced drillinyi#¢in most producing areas.
Significant results include the following:

e Netincome of $34.9 millior

» Distributions of $50.5 million to our limited pa#rs;

» Identified 360 new wells located on our Royalty &t Profits Interest Properties in 11 sta

» Consummated 103 leases of our mineral interestdeweloped properties located in 32 counties anidhes in eight states, a

» Consummated the acquisition of complementary minesgalty, and net profits interest propertieekthange for our limite
partnership units

Critical Accounting Policies

We utilize the full cost method of accounting foists related to our oil and natural gas propertiesler this method, all such costs are
capitalized and amortized on an aggregate basistbgestimated lives of the properties using thiéseof-production method. These
capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling tesygwer, which limits such pooled costs to the aggre@f the present value of future net revenues
attributable to proved oil and natural gas resedigesounted at 10% plus the lower of cost or mavkéte of unproved properties. Our
Partnership did not assign any book or market viduenproved properties, including nonproducingattyy mineral and leasehold interests.
The full cost ceiling is evaluated at the end aftequarter and when events indicate possible imm@it. No impairments have been recorded
since 2003.

The discounted present value of our proved oil@atdral gas reserves is a major component of tiiagealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aeeémts based on engineering and geological anapgésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiesatfiral gas or crude oil reserves based on the gaiormation. Our reserve estimates are
prepared by independent consultants. The passagaeprovides more qualitative information regaglreserve estimates, and revisions are
made to prior estimates based on updated informatlowever, there can be no assurance that mandisamt revisions will not be necessary
in the future. Significant downward revisions cotggult in an impairment representing a non-casingehto earnings. In addition to the impact
on calculation of the ceiling test, estimates afved reserves are also a major component of ticelesibn of depletion.

While the guantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil metdral gas reserves that are included
in the discounted present value of our reserveslgjertively determined. Effective December 31,208e ceiling test calculation requires use
of the unweighted arithmetic average of the fiesf df the month price during the h2enth period ending on the balance sheet date @std i
effect as of the last day of the accounting penwdtich are generally held constant for the lifahef properties. As a result, the present value is
not necessarily an indication of the fair valueted reserves. Oil and natural gas prices haverfdatty been volatile, and the prevailing prices
at any given time may not reflect our Partnership’¢he industry’s forecast of future prices.

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenuksxgenses during the reporting period. For
example,
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estimates of uncollected revenues and unpaid egpdrem Royalty Properties and NPIs operated byafbiated entities are particularly
subjective due to the inability to gain accuratd amely information. Therefore, actual results lcbdiffer from those estimates. Please see
“ltem 1. Business—Customers and Pricing” and “I&nProperties—Royalty Properties” for additionaalission.

Contractual Obligations
Our office lease in Dallas, Texas comprises outrastual obligations.

Payments due by Period
Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years

Operating Lease Obligatiol $1,052,001 $ 237,00( $489,00( $326,00( —

Results of Operations

Normally, our period-to-period changes in net eageiand cash flows from operating activities areqpally determined by changes in
oil and natural gas sales volumes and prices,@addsser extent, by capital expenditures deduatdér the NPI calculation. Our portion of
and natural gas sales volumes and weighted aveedge prices are shown in the following table.

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Accrual Basis Sales Volume
Royalty Properties Gas Sales (mnmr 4,981 4,457 4,00%
Royalty Properties Oil Sales (mbb 322 294 301
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales (mn 3,351 3,59: 3,871
Net Profits Interests Qil Sales (mbb 10 11 12
Accrual Basis Weighted Averages Sales Pi
Royalty Properties Gas Sales ($/rr $ 4.21 $ 3.71 $ 8.2¢
Royalty Properties Oil Sales ($/bl $74.71 $57.3¢ $96.0:
Net Profits Interests Gas Sales ($/n $ 5.07 $ 3.91 $ 8.5¢
Net Profits Interests Oil Sales ($/b $69.4( $51.8¢ $98.7¢
Accrual Basis Production Costs Deducted unde
Net Profits Interests ($/mcfi@ $ 1.7€ $ 1.5C $ 1.8¢

(1) Provided to assist in determination of revenuepliep only to Net Profits Interests sales volumesgs.

Comparison of the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Royalty Properties’ oil sales volumes decrease®#Zrdm 301 mbbls during 2008 to 294 mbbls durin@26ecause of natural declines
but increased 9.5% to 322 mbbls during 2010 pértéale to the acquisition of Maecenas Minerals ldtPMarch 31, 2010 and to activity in -
Bakken Shale Trend of North Dakota. Royalty Prapstigas sales volumes increased 11.3% from 4,0@8frduring 2008 to 4,457 mmcf
during 2009 and then increased 11.9% to 4,987 nadwdhg 2010. The increase in natural gas volume&d0D was primarily due to the
acquisition of royalty and overriding royalty inésts in the Barnett Shale Trend effective JunérBR010, natural gas volumes increased di
the acquisition of Maecenas Minerals LLP effectidarch 31, 2010 and the Barnett Shale propertiegiesd|June 30, 2009.

NPI properties’ oil sales volumes decreased 8.3%hft2 mbbls during 2008 to 11 mbbls during 2009, subsequently decreased 9.1%
to 10 mbbls during 2010. NPI properties’ gas satdames decreased 7.3% from 3,877 mmcf during 208593 mmcf during 2009 and
subsequently decreased 6.7% to 3,351 mmcf in 28&0ipally as a result of natural reservoir dematin the Guymon-Hugoton field in
Oklahoma.
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Weighted average oil sales prices attributabl&éoRoyalty Properties decreased 40.3% from $960dlpl in 2008 to $57.35 per bbl in
2009 and subsequently increased 30.4% to $74.76bém 2010. Royalty Properties’ weighted averggs sales prices decreased 55.0% from
$8.25 per mcf during 2008 to $3.71 per mcf durif@2and then increased 13.5% to $4.21 per mcf d@@i0. All such fluctuations resulted
from changing market conditions.

Weighted average NPI properties’ gas sales prieesedsed 54.4% from $8.58 per mcf during 2008 t81$Ber mcf during 2009 and
then increased 29.7% to $5.07 per mcf in 2010. N&perties’ weighted average oil sales prices deae 47.5% from $98.76 per bbl during
2008 to $51.83 per bbl during 2009 followed by meréase of 33.9% to $69.40 per bbl in 2010. Alhsilectuations resulted from changing
market conditions. Additionally, 2009 natural gaie@s include a natural gas liquids payment acartiD.51/mcf related to 2009 production
compared to $0.59/mcf in 2008. Similarly, an adudiéil amount of approximately $2.4 million for 20di@duction is anticipated to be received
during the first quarter of 2011. The accrued 204tural gas liquids payment of $0.77/mcf is inclidethe $5.07/mcf average gas sales price
for 2010. The natural gas liquids payments aredasean Oklahoma Guymon-Hugoton field 1994 gasvdgliagreement that is in effect
through 2015. Under the terms of the agreementnwilie market price of natural gas liquids increasgciently disproportionately to natural
gas market prices, the operating partnership reseivportion of that increase in an annual paynherihe event the evaluation at the end of the
annual contract period shows the payment to berdéetable and collectable, the revenue is accrued.

Our operating revenues decreased 51.5% from $8®0@%5luring 2008 to $43,631,000 in 2009 primarsyaaesult of decreased oil and
natural gas prices. Our operating revenues incoe48®% from $43,631,000 during 2009 to $61,094@@@g 2010 primarily as a result of
increased oil and natural gas prices during 20&0gaWwith increased natural gas volumes from prepastuisitions effective March 31, 2010.

General and administrative (“G&A”) costs decrea6e2% from $3,965,000 in 2008 to $3,715,000 in 2008 to reduced capital
expenditures reimbursed. G&A costs increased 1Trtf $3,715,000 in 2009 to $4,128,000 in 2010 duimtreased costs related to, among
other things, regulatory reporting changes, inedasimber of unitholder accounts requiring K-1s prafessional fees related to revenue
audits.

Depletion and amortization increased 5.8% from $39,000 in 2008 to $15,599,000 in 2009 primarihaassult of the acquisition of
new properties along with low natural gas pricimgacting depletable reserves. Changes in reselwa@aidons during 2009 did not increase
depletion materially. During 2010, depletion andoatization increased 15.3% to $17,988,000, prirgaad a result of the acquisition of new
properties partially offset by a lower depletioterdue to upward revisions in oil and natural gserve estimates. Cash flow from operations
and cash distributions to unitholders are not afi@dy depletion, depreciation and amortization.

Net cash provided by operating activities decre&e@% from $82,908,000 during 2008 to $37,396,8Mdng 2009 primarily due to
decreased oil and natural gas prices. Net cashdawy operating activities increased 41.1% to,$62,000 during 2010 primarily due to
increased oil and natural gas prices and increaaeotal gas production due to the acquisition of peoperties effective March 31, 2010.

Climate Change

Climate change has become the subject of an impquteblic policy debate. Climate change legislatonl regulations have been adoj
by many foreign countries and some states in thieedistates. However, legislation and regulaticesenot been enacted at the federal level,
although the United States Congress has consideleating climate change legislation. Several staée® adopted or are considering adopting
climate change legislation. Further, the EPA hasdd greenhouse gas monitoring and reporting régadathat went into effect January 1,
2010, and that require reporting by regulated itgesl by March 2011 and annually thereafter. Th&EBs issued final regulations requiring
petroleum and natural gas operators meeting aicemaission threshold to report their greenhouseagaissions to the EPA. Beyond
measuring and reporting, the
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EPA issued an “Endangerment Finding” under Se@ia?(a) of the Clean Air Act, concluding greenhogas pollution threatens the public
health and welfare of future generations. The EB# ihdicated that it will use data collected thiotige reporting rules to decide whether to
promulgate future greenhouse gas emission limfs. durrent state of development of many state ederél climate change regulatory
initiatives makes it difficult to predict with caihty the future impact on us, including accuratsimating the related compliance costs the
operating partnership and oil and natural gas ¢perghat develop our properties may incur.

See Item 1A. Risk Factors — “Environmental cost} la@bilities and changing environmental regulatémuld affect our cash flow” and
“The adoption of climate change legislation by Cesgrcould result in increased operating costs eshaced demand for the oil and natural
production from our properties.”

Texas Margin Tax

Texas imposes a franchise tax (commonly referrestihhe Texas margin tax) at a rate of 1% on gmsmues less certain deductions, as
specifically set forth in the Texas margin tax stat The Texas margin tax applies to corporatiowklinited liability companies, general and
limited partnerships (unless otherwise exempt)itéichliability partnerships, trusts (unless othesavexempt), business trusts, business
associations, professional associations, jointkstemnpanies, holding companies, joint venturesaarthin other business entities having
limited liability protection.

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirngading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioe from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m#agias “passive entities.” We believe our Paghigrmeets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingarposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the $emargin tax. If the Partnership is exempt
from Texas margin tax as a passive entity, eacthalder that is considered a taxable entity underTftexas margin tax would generally be
required to include its portion of Partnership maves in its own Texas margin tax computation. Taeas Administrative Code provides such
income is sourced according to the principal plafdeusiness of the Partnership, which would bestage of Texas.

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisaiwegarding the requirements for filing stateome, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital are our cash flomnfithe Royalty Properties and the NPIs. We aralimettly liable for the payment of
any exploration, development or production coste.dt/ not have any transactions, arrangements er m#fationships that could materially
affect our liquidity or the sustainability of cagliresources.

Pursuant to the terms of our partnership agreementannot incur indebtedness, other than tradelpes, (i) in excess of $50,000 in the
aggregate at any given time or (ii) which would stitnte “acquisition indebtedness” (as defined écthn 514 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended).

Our only cash requirements are the distributionalladur net cash flow to our unitholders, the pawtnof oil and natural gas production
and property taxes not otherwise deducted fromsgposduction revenues and general and administrattpenses incurred on our behalf and
allocated in accordance with our partnership agesgnsince the distributions to our unitholders asedefinition, determined after the
payment of all expenses actually paid by us, thg cash requirements that may create liquidity @ns for us are the payments of expenses.
Since many of these expenses vary directly witod natural gas prices and sales
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volumes, such as production taxes, we anticipatestifficient funds will be available at all timis payment of these expenses. Of the
expenses that do not vary with oil and naturalgyases and sales volumes, most are reimbursenepts tgeneral partner for allocable general
and administrative costs including home office yeataries, and employee benefit plans. Such raiselents are generally limited to 5% o
amount primarily based on annual distributionsuolonited partners. Historically, all such reimbaments have been substantially below the
5% limit established by the partnership agreent@ansequently, even during the 2008 economic downtwr business risks were essentially
limited to distribution amount decreases. See “lferBusiness — Credit Facilities and Financing laBee “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks
Related to our Business — Cash distributions deetfd by production and other costs, some of whrehoutside of our control.” Sede€m 1A.
Risk Factors — Risks Inherent In An Investment lr Gommon Units — Cost reimbursement due our gépartner may be substantial and
reduce our cash available to distribute to ourhatiters.” See “Notes to Consolidated Financialeétesnts — Note 3 — Related Party
Transactions.”

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangesrtbiat have or are reasonably likely to have sectiror future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedexpenditures or capital resources that are
material to unitholders.

Expenses and Capital Expenditures

The operating partnership plans to continue itsreffto increase production in Oklahoma by techesciinat may include fracture treati
deepening, recompleting, and drilling. Costs vaigely and are not predictable as each effort reguipecific engineering. Such activities by
the operating partnership could influence the anhaumreceive from the NPIs as reflected in the aaldpasis production costs $/mcfe in the
table under “Results of Operations.”

The operating partnership owns and operates this,vpgbelines and natural gas compression and datigd facilities located in Kansas
and Oklahoma. The operating partnership anticipgtadual increases in expenses as repairs to theates become more frequent and
anticipates gradual increases in field operatingeases as reservoir pressure declines. The oggpatimership does not anticipate incurring
significant expense to replace these facilitiethisttime. These capital and operating costs dtected in the NPl payments we receive from
the operating partnership.

In 1998, Oklahoma regulations removed producticangjty restrictions in the Guymon-Hugoton field atid not address efforts by third
parties to persuade Oklahoma to permit infill drdlin the Guymon-Hugoton field. Infill drilling add require considerable capital
expenditures. The outcome and the cost of suchitiesi are unpredictable and could influence theam we receive from the NPIs. The
operating partnership believes it now has sufficfestd compression and permits for vacuum operatay the foreseeable future.

Liquidity and Working Capital
Year-end cash and cash equivalents totaled $10@83or 2010, $10,124,000 for 2009, and $16,211f60@008.
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Distributions

Distributions to limited partners and the generatiper related to cash receipts for the period f@ctober 2009 through December 2010
were as follows:

$ in Thousands

Per Unit Limited General
Year Quarter Record Date Payment Date Amount Partners Partner
200¢ 4th  January 25, 201 February 4, 201 $0.32154( $ 9,59t $ 33¢
201C 1st  April 29, 2010 May 10, 201(C 0.44922: 13,78( 424
201C 2nc  August 2, 201( August 12, 201! 0.41220° 12,64¢ 442
201C 3rd  October 25, 201 November 4, 201 0.47108: 14,45( 52z
Total distributions paid in 201 $50,47( $1,72¢
201C 4th  January 24, 201 February 3, 201 $0.35407- $10,86! $ 38¢

In general, the limited partners are allocated @%e Royalty Properties’ net receipts and 99%wfNPI net receipts.

Net Profits Interests

We receive monthly payments from the operatingrgaship equal to 96.97% of the net proceeds agtuedllized by the operating
partnership from the properties underlying the Rieffits Interests (or “NPIs”). The operating parstep retains the 3.03% balance of these net
proceeds. Net proceeds generally reflect grossepraxattributable to oil and natural gas produaictnally received during the month less
production costs actually paid during the same mdPtoduction costs generally reflect drilling, qaetion, operating and general and
administrative costs and exclude depletion, amatith and other non-cash costs. The operating gattip made NPI payments to us totaling
$11,985,000 during October 2009 through Septem®&d,2vhich payments reflected 96.97% of total meteeds of $12,360,000 realized fi
September 2009 through August 2010. Net proceediged by the operating partnership during Septertthbeugh November 2010 were
reflected in NP1 payments made during October thhoDecember 2010. These payments were includdeifotirth quarter distribution paid
early 2011 and are excluded from this 2010 analysis

Royalty Properties

Revenues from the Royalty Properties are typiqadligl to us with proportionate severance (produgtiaxes deducted and remitted by
others. Additionally, we generally pay ad valoreaxres, general and administrative costs, and matkatid associated costs since royalties
lease bonuses generally do not otherwise bear tipgi@ similar costs. After deduction of the abalescribed costs including cash reserves,
our net cash receipts from the Royalty Propertigsd the period October 2009 through Septembef 2@dre $40,213,000, of which
$38,605,000 (96%) was distributed to the limitedners and $1,608,000 (4%) was distributed to #1eegal partner. Proceeds received by us
from the Royalty Properties during the period Oetdiirough December 2010 became part of the fajur#nter distribution paid in early 2011,
which is excluded from this 2010 analysis.
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Distribution Determinations

The actual calculation of distributions is perfodreach calendar quarter in accordance with ouneestip agreement. The following
calculation covering the period October 2009 thifoGgptember 2010 demonstrates the method.

$ In Thousands

General
Limited
Partners Partner
4% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Proper $ — $1,60¢
96% of Net Cash Receipts from Royalty Propel 38,60¢ —
1% of NPl Payments to our Partners 12C
99% of NPI Payments to our Partners 11,86¢ —
Total Distributions $50,47( $1,72¢
Operating Partnership Share (3.03% of Net Proce — 374
Total General Partner She — $2,10z
% of Total 96% 4%

In summary, our limited partners received 96%, amdgeneral partner received 4% of the net caskrgésd by our activities and those
of the operating partnership during this periode@amthese fixed percentages, our general partves dot have any incentive distribution ric
or other right or arrangement that will increasepiercentage share of net cash generated by dwitiestor those of the operating partnership.

During the period October 2009 through Septemb&026ur Partnership’s quarterly distribution paytseo limited partners were based
on all of its available cash. Our Partnership’sya@iginificant cash reserves that influenced quigrfsayments were $1,378,000 for ad valorem
taxes. Additionally, certain production costs unther NPI calculation and a small portion of managenexpense reimbursements include
amounts for which funds were set aside monthlyntabée payment when due. Examples are contributm®&EP-IRA accounts and payroll
taxes. These amounts generally are not held faogeeover one year.

Fourth Quarter 2010 Distribution Indicated Price

In an effort to provide information concerning @récof oil and natural gas sales that correspoodtauarterly distributions, managem
calculates the weighted average price by dividiragg revenues received by the net volumes of tiregmonding product without regard to the
timing of the production to which such sales maytigbutable. This “indicated price” does not nesaily reflect the contractual terms for
such sales and may be affected by transportatists docation differentials, and quality and gradtjustments. While the relationship
between the Partnership’s cash receipts and thegiof the production of oil and natural gas maydbecribed generally, actual cash receipts
may be materially impacted by purchasers’ reledseispended funds and by prior period adjustments.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnershipyalty Properties during the 2010 fourth quatdtaled approximately $10.4 million. The
receipts generally reflect oil sales during Septentbrough November 2010 and natural gas saleagldigust through October 2010. The
weighted average indicated prices for oil and redtgas sales during the 2010 fourth quarter atizile to the Royalty Properties were
$75.14/bbl and $3.97/mcf.

Cash receipts attributable to the Partnership’sNiating the 2010 fourth quarter totaled approxatya$2.1 million. These receipts
generally reflect oil and natural gas sales fromptoperties underlying the NPIs during August tigto October 2010. The weighted average
indicated prices for oil and natural gas salesrdutine 2010 fourth quarter attributable to the Nidse $66.82/bbl and $3.74/mcf.
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General and Administrative Costs

In accordance with our partnership agreement, vae &iégeneral and administrative and other ovetlegenses subject to certain
limitations. We reimburse our general partner fertain allocable costs, including rent, wages,rg&gdaand employee benefit plans. This
reimbursement is limited to an amount equal tostima of 5% of our distributions plus certain cosevipusly paid. Through December 31,
2010, the limitation was in excess of the reimbomset amounts actually paid or accrued.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The following information provides quantitative agqdalitative information about our potential expasuto market risk. The term
“market risk” refers to the risk of loss arisingiin adverse changes in oil and natural gas prinesgist rates and currency exchange rates. The
disclosures are not meant to be precise indicafoegpected future losses, but rather indicatongaskible losses.

Market Risk Related to Oil and Natural Gas Prices

Essentially all of our assets and sources of incaradrom the Royalty Properties and the NPIs, tvigienerally entitle us to receive a
share of the proceeds from oil and natural gasymtaoh on those properties. Consequently, we dogestito market risk from fluctuations in
oil and natural gas prices. Pricing for oil andunak gas production has been volatile and unprablietfor several years. We do not anticipate
entering into financial hedging activities intendededuce our exposure to oil and natural gaeghictuations.

Absence of Interest Rate and Currency Exchange Riake

We do not anticipate having a credit facility ocumring any debt, other than trade debt. Therefoeego not expect interest rate risk tc
material to us. We do not anticipate engagingangactions in foreign currencies which could expesto foreign currency related market ri

ITEM8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements are set feethin commencing on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, hasluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduledRl3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangeadatf December 31, 2010. Based on
this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andi&Hrinancial Officer have concluded that, as ot&maber 31, 2010, our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective, in that they enthakinformation required to be disclosed by uthmreports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summasrddeported within the time periods specifiethiea SEC’s rules and forms, and
(2) accumulated and communicated to our managenmehiding our Chief Executive Officer and ChiehBncial Officer, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management acknowledges its responsibility fortdisthing and maintaining adequate internal cordkar financial reporting in
accordance with Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated underBkchange Act. Management has also evaluatedféwieeness of its internal control
over external financial reporting in accordancehvwgénerally accepted accounting principles withi guidelines of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisBamework. Based on the results of this evaluativanagement has determined tha
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay was effective as of December 31, 2010. Thepethdent registered public accounting firm
of Grant Thornton LLP, as auditors of the Partnig@stfinancial statements included in the AnnuapBe, has issued an attestation report on
the Partnership’s internal control over financigorting.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our Partnership’s intexoairol over financial reporting (as defined inlR@3a-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) during the quarter ended Der 31, 2010, that have materially affected, erransonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statemnadnith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2010.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@eterein by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl2&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2010.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
UNITHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2010.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statemdmth will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl&ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2010.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@etherein by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statemadnith will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later tl28ndhys subsequent to December 31, 2010.

40



Table of Contents

ITEM 15.

Number

3.1C

3.11

3.1z

3.1<

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

(1)
(2)
3)

See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statermmnizage -1.
No schedules are require
Exhibits.

Description

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Ext8titto Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartiferdtDorchester Minerals, L.P. (incorporated bference to Exhibit
3.2 to Dorchester Minere Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Management LP (incorporated by referenéextobit 3.4 to
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartipftDorchester Minerals Management LP (incorpedaty referenc
to Exhibit 3.4 to Dorchester Miner’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals Mgament GP LLC (incorporated by reference to ExI3 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLCofiporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to Dorchester Mine’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Formation of Dorchester Minerals @qing GP LLC (incorporated by reference to Exh$it0 to Dorcheste
Mineral¢ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Limited Liability Company Agreement of Dorchesteiridrals Operating GP LLC (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.11
to Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemdials Operating LP (incorporated by referencextuaittit 3.12 to
Dorchester Minera’ Registration Statement on Forr-4, Registration Number 3-88282)

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited PartigeftDorchester Minerals Operating LP (incorpodaby reference t
Exhibit 3.10 to Dorchester Miner? Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Dorchestemidials Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference tailti3.11 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Agreement of Limited Partnership of Dorchester Mae Oklahoma LP (incorporated by reference to EixI3.12 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20

Certificate of Incorporation of Dorchester Miner@klahoma GP, Inc. (incorporated by reference thiliik3.13 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form K for the year ended December 31, 20
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Number

3.1

10.1

10.z

10.:

10.¢

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1¢

10.11

21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
23.3*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*
99.1*
99.2*

Description
Bylaws of Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inccgimporated by reference to Exhibit 3.14 to Dorclebtinerals’ Annual

Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Amended and Restated Business Opportunities Agnetetla¢ed as of December 13, 2001 by and betweeRegestrant, thi
General Partner, Dorchester Minerals Managemenitl@&R SAM Partners, Ltd., Vaughn Petroleum, Ltd.,iBrnillen Oil &
Gas, Inc., P.A. Peak, Inc., James E. Raley, Imcl,certain other parties (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.1 to
Dorchester Minera’ Annual Report on Form K for the year ended December 31, 20

Transfer Restriction Agreement (incorporated bgmefice to Exhibit 10.2 to Dorchester Minerals’ AahReport on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 20

Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated bynexiee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dorchester Mine’ Annual Report on Form -
K for the year ended December 31, 20

Lock-Up Agreement by William Casey McManemin (ingorated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dorchebtirerals’ Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 20

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by refieeto Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Minerals’ Qudytéteport on Form
1C-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

Contribution and Exchange Agreement by and amongtigster Minerals, L.P., Tiggator, Inc., TRB Minerd_.P and Wes
Fork Partners dated May 15, 2009 (incorporatecefigrence to Exhibit 10.1 to Dorchester Mineralstr@nt Report on Form
8-K dated June 30, 200

Amendment No. 1 dated June 26, 2009 to Contribwtimh Exchange Agreement by and among Dorchestesrifg) L.P.
Tiggator, Inc., TRB Minerals, LP and West Fork Rars dated May 15, 2009 (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.2 to
Dorchester Minera’ Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2C

Lock-up Agreement by Tiggator, Inc. dated June 30, Z00®rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dester Mineral
Current Report on Forr-K dated June 30, 200

Lock-up Agreement by TRB Minerals, LP dated Jung2®D9 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.Dbrchester
Mineral¢ Current Report on Formr-K dated June 30, 200

Lock-up Agreement by West Fork Partners, LP dated B0, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBif to Dorchester
Mineral¢ Current Report on Formr-K dated June 30, 200

Contribution and Exchange Agreement dated Marct2810 by and among Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Dabbyees
Foundation, The Legett Foundation, Kickapoo Sprirgsndation, The Karakin Foundation, Still WateuRdation, Xettam
Minerals, L.P., 2MW Limited Partnership, Julia Jetéatthews, Trustee of the Julia Jones Matthewmgiv¥rust, and John ,
Matthews, Jr. (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl to Dorchester Mineré Report on Form-K ( filed on April 6, 2010)

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Grant Thornton LL

Consent of Calhoun, Blair & Associat

Consent of LaRoche Petroleum Consultants,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certification of Chief Financial Officer of our Raership pursuant to Rule 1-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1

Report of Calhoun, Blair & Associat

Report of LaRoche Petroleum Consultants,

* Filed herewitr
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN OIL AND NATURAL GAS TERMS

The definitions set forth below shall apply to thdicated terms as used in this document. All vaaraf natural gas referred to herein
stated at the legal pressure base of the stateamaere the reserves exist and at 60 degreesrifadir and in most instances are rounded t
nearest major multiple.

“bbl” means a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons an@septs the basic unit for measuring the produaifamude oil, natural gas liqui
and condensate.

“bcf” means one billion cubic feet under prescribed dmm of pressure and temperature and represemtis for measuring the
production of natural gas.

“Depletion” means (a) the volume of hydrocarbons extracted &darmation over a given period of time, (b) theerof hydrocarbon
extraction over a given period of time expressed psrcentage of the reserves existing at the bagjrof such period, or (c) the amount of «
basis at the beginning of a period attributablthéovolume of hydrocarbons extracted during suctoge

“Division order” means a document to protect lessees and purctedggduction, in which all parties who may havelam to the
proceeds of the sale of production agree upon hewptoceeds are to be divided.

“Enhanced recovery’means the process or combination of processeseapplia formation to extract hydrocarbons in addito those
that would be produced utilizing the natural enezgisting in that formation. Examples of enhanaezbrery include water flooding and carl
dioxide (CO2) injection.

“Estimated future net revenuegalso referred to as “estimated future net cash™laneans the result of applying current prices ofatll
natural gas to estimated future production fromaai natural gas proved reserves, reduced by dstiMfisture expenditures, based on current
costs to be incurred in developing and producimgpttoved reserves, excluding overhead.

“Formation” means a distinct geologic interval, sometimes reteto as the strata, which has characteristiah(as permeability,
porosity and hydrocarbon saturations) that dististgit from surrounding intervals.

“Gross acre” means the number of surface acres in which a worikiterest is owned.

“Gross well” means a well in which a working interest is owned.

“Lease bonus’means the initial cash payment made to a lessarlegsee in consideration for the execution andeyance of the lease.
“Leasehold” means an acre in which a working interest is owned.

“Lessee” means the owner of a lease of a mineral interesttiact of land.

“Lessor” means the owner of the mineral interest who gramésse of his interest in a tract of land to edtpiarty, referred to as the
lessee.

“Mineral interest” means the interest in the minerals beneath thesdf a tract of land. A mineral interest may &eesed from the
ownership of the surface of the tract. Ownership ofineral interest generally involves four incitteof ownership: (1) the right to use the
surface; (2) the right to incur costs and retaufits, also called the right to develop; (3) thghtito transfer all or a portion of the mineral
interest; and (4) the right to retain lease besgiffitcluding bonuses and delay rentals.
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“mcf’ means one thousand cubic feet under prescribedtmmsdof pressure and temperature and repredematsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“mbbls” means one thousand standard barrels of 42 U.®ngadind represents the basic unit for measuringriteuction of crude oil,
natural gas liquids and condensate.

“mmcf’ means one million cubic feet under prescribed d@m of pressure and temperature and representsasic unit for measuring
the production of natural gas.

“Net acre” means the product determined by multiplying grasesby the interest in such acres.
“Net well” means the product determined by multiplying grdbard natural gas wells by the interest in suchisve

“Net profits interest”’means a non-operating interest that creates a shgress production from another (operating or-nperating)
interest in oil and natural gas properties. Theesigmdetermined by net profits from the sale aidorction and customarily provides for the
deduction of capital and operating costs from ttee@eds of the sale of production. The owner aétgpnofits interest is customarily liable for
the payment of capital and operating costs onthéoextent that revenue is sufficient to pay suadicbut not otherwise.

“Operator” means the individual or company responsible foretk@oration, development, and production of arooihatural gas well or
lease.

“Overriding royalty interest”means a royalty interest created or reserved froothar (operating or non-operating) interest iraoid
natural gas properties. Its term extends for timeesierm as the interest from which it is created.

“Payout” or “Back-in" occurs when the working interest owners who paudita in the costs of drilling and completing a wetloup the
costs and expenses, or a multiple of the costeapenses, of drilling and completing that well. ¥tilen are the owners who chose not to
contribute to these initial costs entitled to paptte with the other owners in production and shiaithe expenses and revenues associated witl
the well. The reversionary interest or back-in iegt of an owner similarly occurs when the ownerdoees entitled to a specified share of the
working or overriding royalty interest when speetficosts have been recovered from production.

“Proved developed reservesiieans reserves that can be expected to be recqijetieugh existing wells with existing equipmeartd
operating methods or in which the cost of the negliequipment is relatively minor compared to tbstof a new well; and (ii) Through
installed extraction equipment and infrastructyserational at the time of the reserves estimateeifextraction is by means not involving a
well.

“Proved reserves” or “Proved oil and natural gasgerves’means those quantities of oil and natural gas, hylig analysis of
geoscience and engineering data, can be estimdttedeasonable certainty to be economically probdleei-from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic dwwr, operating methods, and governmental reguiati-prior to the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expirdess evidence indicates that renewal is reasoreatgin, regardless of whether deterministic
or probabilistic methods are used for the estinmafidie project to extract the hydrocarbons musef@mmmenced or the operator must be
reasonably certain that it will commence the proyeithin a reasonable time.

“Proved undeveloped reservegieans proved reserves that are expected to beerezbfrom new wells on undrilled acreage, or from
existing wells where a relatively major expenditigreequired for recompletion.
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“Royalty” means an interest in an oil and natural gas léegeyives the owner of the interest the right teeiree a portion of the
production from the leased acreage (or of the mds®f the sale thereof) but generally does natireghe owner to pay any portion of the
costs of drilling or operating the wells on theded acreage.

“Severance tax'means an amount of tax, surcharge or levy recoMgyerbvernmental agencies from the gross procekdis @and nature
gas sales. Severance tax may be determined asentsge of proceeds or as a specific amount pamadtic unit of sales. Severance tax is
usually withheld from the gross proceeds of oil aatural gas sales by the first purchaser (e.gelipie or refinery) of production.

“Standardized measure of discounted future net dksts” (also referred to as “standardized measumegans the pretax present valus
estimated future net revenues to be generatedtiiemqproduction of proved reserves calculated imatance with SEC guidelines, net of
estimated production and future development casiag prices and costs as of the date of estimatitihrout future escalation, without giving
effect to non-property related expenses such asrgkand administrative expenses, debt servicalapteciation, depletion and amortization,
and discounted using an annual discount rate of. 10%

“Test Rate”means a daily volume of oil, gas or condensatehattwa well produced to a pipeline or tank battsithin that well’s first
month of production based on information obtainmeanf public sources or from the operator.

“Undeveloped acreageimeans lease acreage on which wells have not bélerd dr completed to a point that would permit the
production of commercial quantities of oil and matwas regardless of whether such acreage corieined reserves.

“Unitization” means the process of combining mineral interesksases thereof in separate tracts of land intngesentity for
administrative, operating or ownership purposestitation is sometimes called “pooling” or “commtination” and may be voluntary or
involuntary.

“Working interest” (also referred to as an “operating interest”) memansal property interest entitling the owner toeiige a specified
percentage of the proceeds of the sale of oil atdral gas production or a percentage of the pitt@ubut requiring the owner of the working
interest to bear the cost to explore for, develwgp groduce such oil and natural gas. A workingregeowner who owns a portion of the
working interest may participate either as operatdsy voting his percentage interest to approveisepprove the appointment of an operator
and certain activities in connection with the depahent and operation of a property.

45



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Date: February 24, 2011

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P

By: Dorchester Minerals Management |
its general partne

By: Dorchester Minerals Management GP LI
its general partne

By: /s/ William Casey McManemi
William Casey McManemil
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesExathange Act of 1934, this report has been sigedalbby the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

/s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemin

Chief Executive Officer and Manager
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 24, 20

/s/ James E. Rale

James E. Raley
Chief Operating Officer and Manager
Date: February 24, 20

/s/ Preston A. Peak

Preston A. Pea
Manager
Date: February 24, 201

/s/ Ronald P. Trout

Ronald P. Trou
Manager
Date: February 24, 20
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/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Officer and Manager
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Date: February 24, 201

/s/ Buford P. Bern
Buford P. Berry
Manager

Date: February 24, 201

/s/ C. W. Russell

C. W. Russel

Manager

Date: February 24, 201

/s/ Robert C. Vaughn
Robert C. Vaughi
Manager

Date: February 24, 201
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited Dorchester Minerals, L.P.’s (a date Limited Partnership) and subsidiaries’ (cdiledy, the “Partnership”) internal
control over financial reporting as of December 3110, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (COSO). The Partnership’s managemmeasponsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportingd for its assessment of the effectiveness efnial control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Annual Reportnbarhal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on
the Partnership’s internal control over financigpaorting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Partnership maintained, imaditerial respects, effective internal control dieancial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on criteria establishedhniternal Control—Integrated Framewoigksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Partnership@saember 31, 2010 and 2009 and the related colasedl statements of operations, cash
flows, and changes in partnership capital for exfche three years in the period ended Decembe2(@®llQ, and our report dated February 24,
2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosenéiizd statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General Partner and Unitholders
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (a Delawardéted Partnership) and
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Partnership”) dDecember 31, 2010 and 2009, and the relatednséatts of operations, cash flows, and
changes in partnership capital for each of theetlygars in the period ended December 31, 2010 eTfirencial statements are the
responsibility of the Partnership’s management. ©@sponsibility is to express an opinion on thésarfcial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of the
Partnership as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 heniesults of its operations and its cash flowsetmrh of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2010, in conformity with accountinmgiples generally accepted in the United State&mérica.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Partnership’s internal control over financial refpay as of December 31, 2010, based on critergbéshed ininternal Control —Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repateéd February 24,
2011 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade and other receivabl
Net profits interests receival—related party
Total current asse

Other nol-current asset

Property and leasehold improveme—at cost:
Oil and natural gas properties (full cost meth
Accumulated full cost depletic
Total

Leasehold improvemen
Accumulated amortizatio

Total
Net property and leasehold improveme
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilit
Current portion of deferred rent incenti
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent incentive less current port
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Partnership capita
General partne
Unitholders
Total partnership capiti
Total liabilities and partnership capi

2010 2009
$ 11,25 $ 10,12
5,54¢ 5,41¢
3,651 3,70¢
20,45: 19,24¢
18 18
344,19 327,06
(211,76) (193,82)
132,43 133,24
517 512
(305) (256)
207 25¢
132,64( 133,50:
$ 153,11 $ 152,76t
$ 54z $  52¢
39 39
581 56¢
12¢ 16¢
71C 737
4,66¢ 5,24(
147,73 146,79:
152,40 152,03
$ 153,11 $ 152,76t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 80@ollars in Thousands, except per unit amounts)

2010 2009 2008
Operating revenue
Royalties $45,09: $33,41: $61,97:
Net profits interest 12,04¢ 9,44¢ 27,44
Lease bonu 3,81¢ 68¢ 441
Other 134 82 70
Total operating revenue 61,09/ 43,63: 89,92t
Costs and expense
Production taxe 1,72¢ 1,202 2,792
Operating expenst 2,44: 2,16( 1,98(
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 17,98¢ 15,59¢ 14,73¢
General and administrative expen 4,12¢ 3,71t 3,96¢
Total costs and expens 26,281 22,67¢ 23,47¢
Operating incomi 34,801 20,95¢ 66,44¢
Other income, ne 76 72€ 334
Net earning: $34,88: $21,68: $66,78:
Allocation of net earnings
General Partne $ 1,157 $ 69¢ $ 1,99¢
Unitholders $33,72¢ $20,98: $64,78¢
Net earnings per common unit (basic and dilu $ 1.11 $ 0.72 $ 2.3C
Weighted average common units outstanding’s) 30,46¢ 29,04« 28,24(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 800

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earning:

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cashiged by operating activitie

Depreciation, depletion and amortizati
Write-off related to unsuccessful acquisiti
Amortization of deferred ret

Changes in operating assets and liabilil
Trade and other receivabl
Net profits interests receivak— related party
Accounts payable and other current liabilit

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Adjustment related to acquisition of natural gasperties
Capital expenditure

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

Cash flows from financing activitie
Distributions paid to partne

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Non-Cash investing and financing activiti
Value of units issued for natural gas propertiegiaed

2010 2009
$ 34,88: $ 21,68
17,98¢ 15,59¢
(40) (39)
(129) (36€)
52 72¢
9 (204)
52,76: 37,39¢
682 1,251
(119) (6)
564 1,24¢
(52,199 (44,729
1,12¢ (6,087)
10,12+ 16,21
$ 11,25 $ 10,12
$ 17,68t $ 36,49¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERSHIP C APITAL
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 8300

Balance at January 1, 20
Net earning:
Distributions ($2.804603 per Un|

Balance at December 31, 20

Net earning:
Acquisition of assets for uni
Distributions ($1.501608 per Un|

Balance at December 31, 20

Net earning:
Acquisition of assets for uni
Distributions ($1.65405 per Uni

Balance at December 31, 20

(Dollars in Thousands)

General
Partner

$6,41%
1,99¢

(2,445
5,971

69¢€

(1,429
5,24(

1,15

(1,72%)
$ 4,66¢

Unitholder
Unitholders Total Units
$147,03( $153,44° 28,240,43
64,78¢ 66,78:
(79,207 (81,64%)
132,61: 138,58: 28,240,43
20,98: 21,68:
36,49¢ 36,49¢ 1,600,001
(43,299 (44,72%)
146,79 152,03: 29,840,43
33,72¢ 34,88:
17,68¢ 17,68¢ 835,00(
(50,47() (52,19¢)
$147,73. $152,40: 30,675,43

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

1. General and Summary of Significant Accounting Polies

Nature of Operations—+n these Notes, the term “Partnership,” as wethasterms “us,” “our,” “we,” and “its” are sometimesed as
abbreviated references to Dorchester Minerals, itsBIf or Dorchester Minerals, L.P. and its rethéatities. Our Partnership is a Dallas, Texas
based owner of producing and nonproducing natwslaamd crude oil royalty, net profits, and leasefiaterests in 574 counties and 25 states.
We are a publicly traded Delaware limited partngrshat was formed in December 2001, and commenpedations on January 31, 2003.

Basis of Presentation-Per-unit information is calculated by dividing tbarnings or loss applicable to holders of our Rastnip’s
common units by the weighted average number ofunitstanding. The Partnership has no potentidliyive securities and, consequently,
basic and dilutive earnings per unit do not differ.

Principles of Consolidation—Fhe consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of Dorchester Minerals, L.P., Dorchester
Minerals Oklahoma, LP, Dorchester Minerals Oklahdg® Inc, newly acquired Maecenas Minerals LLP, mewly formed subsidiary
Dorchester-Maecenas GP LLC. Dorchester Mineralsufsitipn LP and Dorchester Minerals Acquisition Git;. were merged into Dorchester
Minerals Oklahoma, LP and Dorchester Minerals Oétah GP, Inc. effective December 31, 2009. All digant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of
America requires management to make estimatesssuirgotions that affect the reported amounts otsissel liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efctnsolidated financial statements and the rep@nt@ounts of revenues and expenses durin
reporting period. For example, estimates of unct#ié revenues and unpaid expenses from royalteaetnprofits interests in properties
operated by non-affiliated entities are particylatibjective due to inability to gain accurate éintely information. Therefore, actual results
could differ from those estimates. See “Iltem 1.iBeiss—Customers and Pricing” and “Item 2. “Progsrti-Royalty Properties” for additional
discussion.

The discounted present value of our proved oil Ratdral gas reserves is a major component of ttiagealculation and requires many
subjective judgments. Estimates of reserves aseémts based on engineering and geological anagésent reserve engineers may reach
different conclusions as to estimated quantitiegiledind natural gas reserves based on the sawmnafion. The passage of time provides n
qualitative information regarding reserve estimatesl revisions are made to prior estimates basegbdated information. However, there can
be no assurance that more significant revisionsnaeil be necessary in the future. Significant doardwevisions could result in an impairment
representing a non-cash charge to earnings. Iniaddd the impact on the calculation of the cegjliest, estimates of proved reserves are also ¢
major component of the calculation of depletiore 8ee discussion undBroperty and Equipment

General Partner—Our general partner is Dorchester Minerals Manageine, referred to in these Notes as “our geneaener.” Our
general partner owns all of the partnership interesDorchester Minerals Operating LP, the opagatiartnership. See Note-3Related Party
Transactions. The general partner is allocated A84l&6 of our Royalty Properties’ revenues and MRénues, respectively. Our executive
officers all own an interest in our general partaed receive no compensation for services as offickour Partnership.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsSur principal banking is with major financial instions. Cash balances in these accounts maynasti
exceed federally insured limits. We have not exgered any losses in such cash
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

accounts and do not believe we are exposed toignifisant risk on cash and cash equivalents. Steonh investments with a maturity of three
months or less are considered to be cash equiga@dtare carried at cost, which approximates/dire. Other income includes interest
earned on short term investments of $1,000, $14 &89 $329,000 in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respeytivel

Concentration of Credit Risks-©ur Partnership, as a royalty owner, has no cootret the volumes or method of sale of oil and ratu
gas produced and sold from the Royalty Propertiés believed that the loss of any single customeuld not have a material adverse effec
the consolidated results of our operations.

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsFhe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalenaide treceivables and payables approximates fai
value because of the short maturity of those insémts. These estimated fair values may not be septative of actual values of the financial
instruments that could have been realized as afged or that will be realized in the future.

Trade Receivables-©ur Partnership’s trade receivables consist prignafiRoyalty Properties payments receivable and p#yments
receivable. Most payments are received two to foonths after production date. No allowance for dfullaccounts is deemed necessary.

Property and Equipment-We utilize the full cost method of accounting faists related to our oil and natural gas propertiesler this
method, all such costs are capitalized and amalrtizean aggregate basis over the estimated livdgegiroperties using the units{afeductior
method. These capitalized costs are subject tdiagtest, however, which limits such pooled castshe aggregate of the present value of
future net revenues attributable to proved oil aatliral gas reserves discounted at 10% plus therlofwcost or market value of unproved
properties. Our Partnership did not assign anyevedwnproved properties, including nonproducingafty, mineral and leasehold interests.
full cost ceiling is evaluated at the end of eachrter and when events indicate possible impairnidrgre have been no impairments recorded
for the years 2010, 2009, and 2008.

While the quantities of proved reserves requirestaritial judgment, the associated prices of oil @atdral gas reserves that are included
in the discounted present value of our reserveslgjeztively determined. Beginning December 31,2@Be ceiling test calculation requires
use of the unweighted arithmetic average of tret flay of the month price during the 12-month mkeading on the balance sheet date
(previously year-end prices) and costs in effeaifabe last day of the accounting period, which generally held constant for the life of the
properties. As a result, the present value is roessarily an indication of the fair value of teearves. Oil and natural gas prices have
historically been volatile, and the prevailing scat any given time may not reflect our Partnefshar the industry’s forecast of future prices.
Changes in determining the price to use in resapert calculations did not materially increase depletion expense.

Our Partnership’s properties are being depletethemnit-of-production method using estimates olvpd oil and natural gas reserves.
Gains and losses are recognized upon the dispositioil and natural gas properties involving andfigant portion (greater than 25%) of our
Partnership’s reserves. Proceeds from other dispasiof oil and natural gas properties are creditethe full cost pool. No gains or losses
have been recorded for 2010, 2009 or 2008.

Due to the nature of our interests, we have nocgapry wells or associated costs pending detertioimaand no exploratory well costs
were charged to expense.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Leasehold improvements include $415,000 receiva@¥ as an incentive in our office space leasesnffset in liabilities as deferred
rent. Leasehold improvements are amortized oveshibeter of their estimated useful lives or thated lease life of 10 years. For leases with
renewal periods at the Partnership’s option, weehesed the original lease term, excluding reneywabno periods to determine useful life.
Deferred rent incentive is being amortized to gahand administrative expense over the same tetitmedeasehold improvements, which is 10
years.

Asset Retirement ObligationsBased on the nature of our property ownership, axemo material obligation required to be recorded.

Revenue RecognitionFhe pricing of oil and natural gas sales from tlog&tty Properties is primarily determined by supphd demand
in the marketplace and can fluctuate consideraksya royalty owner, we have extremely limited inn@hent and operational control over the
volumes and method of sale of oil and natural gadyced and sold from the Royalty Properties.

Revenues from Royalty Properties and NPIs are decbunder the cash receipts approach as directyved from the remitters’
statement accompanying the revenue check. Sinaevleaue checks are generally received two tofoamths after the production month, the
Partnership accrues for revenue earned but naveetby estimating production volumes and produictgs.

Income Taxes-We are treated as a partnership for income taxgs@pand, as a result, our income or loss is ifkith the tax returns
of the individual unitholders. Unitholders shoulshsult tax advisors concerning their own tax sitret. Depletion of oil and natural gas
properties is an expense allowable to each indaligartner, and the depletion expense as reporte¢kdeoconsolidated financial statements will
not be indicative of the depletion expense an iiddial partner or unitholder may be able to dedaciricome tax purposes.

Texas imposes a franchise tax (commonly referresstihhe Texas margin tax) at a rate of 1% on gmsmues less certain deductions, as
specifically set forth in the Texas margin tax stat The Texas margin tax applies to corporationslianited liability companies, general and
limited partnerships (unless otherwise exempt)itéichliability partnerships, trusts (unless othesavexempt), business trusts, business
associations, professional associations, jointkstemnpanies, holding companies, joint venturesaarthin other business entities having
limited liability protection.

Limited partnerships that receive at least 90%hefrtgross income from designated passive souirngading royalties from mineral
properties and other non-operated mineral inténesime, and do not receive more than 10% of timeioine from operating an active trade or
business, are generally exempt from the Texas m#agias “passive entities.” We believe our Paghigrmeets the requirements for being
considered a “passive entity” for Texas margingarposes and, therefore, it is exempt from the $emargin tax. If the Partnership is exempt
from Texas margin tax as a passive entity, eactmoldier that is considered a taxable entity underTtexas margin tax would generally be
required to include its portion of Partnership mawes in its own Texas margin tax computation. Taeas Administrative Code provides such
income is sourced according to the principal plafdeusiness of the Partnership, which would bestage of Texas.

Each unitholder is urged to consult his own taxisaiwegarding the requirements for filing stateome, franchise and Texas margin tax
returns.
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Subsequent EvertsWe are not aware of any subsequent events, winichat already recognized or disclosed, that woedgiire
recognition or disclosure in the financial statetaen

2. Acquisition for Units

We have an effective registration statement on Fefinregistering 5,000,000 common units that magffered and issued by the
Partnership from time to time in connection witsetsacquisitions or other business combinatiorsaations. On March 31, 2010, Dorchester
Minerals, LP and a newly formed subsidiary acquakaf the outstanding partnership interests irebtnas Minerals, LLP, a Texas limited
liability partnership that owns producing and nagarcing mineral and royalty interests located irstétes, in exchange for 835,000 common
units of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. valued at $18,680 and issued pursuant to the shelf registratiaiement. The Consolidated Balance
Sheets presented include $17,121,000 in propedyiads as well as other assets and liabilitiesuaegl. After the issuance, 2,565,000 units
remain available under the shelf registration state.

On June 30, 2009, we acquired producing and noduming Barnett Shale mineral and royalty interé&stated in Tarrant County, Texas
for 1,600,000 common units of Dorchester MineralB, issued pursuant to the shelf registratiorestaint. Net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition totaled $36,496,000. The balance shgretented include $35,245,000 in property addition

3. Related Party Transactions

Our general partner owns all of the partnershigresdts in the operating partnership. It is the eyl of all personnel, owns the working
interests and other properties underlying our N&sl, provides day-tday operational and administrative services tongsthe general partne
In accordance with our partnership agreement, \metngrse the general partner for certain allocakleegal and administrative costs, including
rent, salaries, and employee benefit plans. Themstof reimbursements are limited to 5% of distiiins, plus certain costs previously paid.
All such costs have been below the 5% limit amoAdtitionally, certain reimbursable direct costslsas professional and regulatory fees
ad valorem and severance taxes, are not limitgphifiant activity between the partnership anddperating partnership consists of the
following:

In Thousands

From/To Operating Partnership 2010 2009 2008

Net Profits Interests Payments Receivable or Aat® $3,651 $3,70¢ $4,42¢
Interest Income related to Net Profits Interestgnfants $ 2 $ 3 $ 1
General & Administrative Amounts Payal $ 121 $ 34 $ 14¢€
General & Administrative Amounts Accru $ 45 $ 33 $ 58
Total General & Administrative Amoun $2,47: $2,44¢ $2,69(

@ Al Net Profits Interests income on the financitements is from the operating partners

4. Commitments and Contingencie:

In January 2002, some individuals and an assoniatitied Rural Residents for Natural Gas Rightsldderchester Hugoton, Ltd., along
with several other operators in Texas County, Oitaa regarding the use of natural gas from the virllesidences. The operating partnership
now owns and operates the properties
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

formerly owned by Dorchester Hugoton. These prageontribute a major portion of the NPl amourgglfgo us. On April 9, 2007, plaintiffs,
for immaterial costs, dismissed with prejudicectdlims against the operating partnership regarsirgy residential gas use. On October 4,
2004, the plaintiffs filed severed claims agaihgt dbperating partnership regarding royalty undempants, which the Texas County District
Court subsequently dismissed with a grant of timeeplead. On January 27, 2006, one of the origitzhtiffs again sued the operating
partnership for underpayment of royalty, seekiragslaction certification. On October 1, 2007, tegak County District Court granted the
operating partnership’s motion for summary judgnferding no royalty underpayments. Subsequently,District Court denied the plaintiff's
motion for reconsideration, and the plaintiff filad appeal. On March 31, 2010, the appeal decisiegrsed and remanded to the Texas Cc
District Court to resolve material issues of fachearing regarding the requested class actioiification is set for late July, 2011. No court
hearing has been scheduled on the merits. An agldexssion could reduce amounts we receive fronNfPis.

Dorchester Minerals, L.P filed Cause No. 07-0250Hérchester Minerals, LP v. H&S Production, Intthe 15th District Court of
Grayson County, Texas in January, 2007. The suiivied claims under an oil and gas lease betwees lsssor and H&S as lessee. Our
Motion for Summary Judgment, which included damadgake amount of $496,000, was granted by théddart in May 2008. H&S appealed
the Judgment. The Fifth District Court of Appediraned the Judgment on liability and remanded amdges. The subsequent Motion for
Rehearing filed by H&S was denied by the Fifth BitAppeals Court. The matter was settled on Oat@2, 2009 with the Appeals Court
ruling on liability continuing to stand, the disrs& with prejudice of the remanded action on darsaged receipt of a $500,000 payment from
H&S to us. The deposit was recorded in the foudhrter 2009 financial statements in other income.

Our Partnership and the operating partnershiprev@ved in other legal and/or administrative pratiegs arising in the ordinary course
of their businesses, none of which have predictabteomes and none of which are believed to hayesigmificant effect on consolidated
financial position, cash flows, or operating result

Operating Leases-We have entered into a non-cancelable, renewalglieesasiling rate for an additional five years, aiarg lease
agreement in the ordinary course of our businetgities. The lease is for our office space at 38&& Lawn Avenue, Suite 300, Dallas, Te:
and expires in 2015. Rental expense related ttetse, including operating expenses and consumetfietectricity, was $226,000, $217,000,
and $200,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2008, respectively. The base rent eschilatNovember 2010. Minimum rental
commitments under the terms of our operating leases follows:

Minimum

Years Ended December 31, Payments

2011 $ 237,00(
2012 240,00(
2013 249,00(
2014 261,00(
2015 65,00(
Total $1,052,00!
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

5. Distribution To Holders Of Common Units
Unitholder cash distributions per common unit hbeen:

Per Unit Amount

2010 2009 2008
First Quartel $0.44922. $0.40120! $0.57230!
Second Quarte $0.41220° $0.27135. $0.76920!
Third Quartel $0.47108: $0.28696:! $0.94847.
Fourth Quarte $0.35407- $0.321541 $0.54208.

Distributions beginning with the first quarter @20 were paid on 30,675,431 units; distributiomsrfthe second quarter of 2009 through
the fourth quarter of 2009 were paid on 29,840431s; previous distributions above were paid 0r228,431 units. Fourth quarter
distributions are paid in February of the followioglendar year to unitholders of record in Janwaryebruary of such following year. The
partnership agreement requires the next cashhuisitsn to be paid by May 15, 2011.

6. Unaudited Oil and Natural Gas Reserve and Standardied Measure Information

The NPIs represent net profits overriding royaftterests in various properties owned by the opegaiartnership. The Royalty Proper
consist of producing and nonproducing mineral, ltyyaverriding royalty, net profits, and leasehaiterests located in 574 counties and
parishes in 25 states. Amounts set forth hereiibatable to the NPIs reflect our 96.97% net shAt#hough new discoveries have occurred on
certain of the Royalty Properties, based on engingetudies available to date, no events haveroedisince December 31, 2010 that would
have a material effect on our estimated provedldged reserves.

In accordance with FASB ASC 932 and Securitiesixchange Commission rules and regulations, thevdtlg information is present
with regard to the Royalty Properties and NPIsaaill natural gas reserves, all of which are progtledeloped and located in the United States.
These rules require inclusion as a supplementadésic financial statements a standardized meas$discounted future net cash flows
relating to proved oil and natural gas reserveg. §tandardized measure, in management’s opinionjdhe examined with caution. The basis
for these disclosures is petroleum engineers’ vesgtudies which contain imprecise estimates ohtjii@s and rates of production of reserves.
Revision of prior year estimates can have a sigguifi impact on the results. Also, exploration aratipction improvement costs in one year
may significantly change previous estimates of ptbkeserves and their valuation. Values of unprgregerties and anticipated future price
and cost increases or decreases are not considéremfore, the standardized measure is not natlgsséest estimate of the fair value of oil
and natural gas properties or of future net cashdl
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DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

The following summaries of changes in reservesstadardized measure of discounted future netftask were prepared from
estimates of proved reserves. The production voluamel reserve volumes included for properties fosnmvned by Dorchester Hugoton are
wellhead volumes, which differ from sales volumbkewsn in “ltem 7.—Management’s Discussion and Anislys Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” because of fuel, shrinkagkmpeline loss. The Standardized Measure of Distad Future Net Cash Flows reflects
adjustments for such fuel, shrinkage and pipeliss.|

Summary of Changes in Proved Reserve

Qil (mbbl) Natural Gas (mmcf)
2010 2009 20080 2010 2009 20080
Estimated quantity, beginning of ye 3,271 3,57( 3,56¢ 60,28( 60,97 61,25¢
Purchase of minerals in pla 15¢ — — 1,16 5,58¢ —
Revisions in previous estimat 317 8,99: 2,21z 8,07(
Production (306) (31%) (8,757 (8,499 (8,349
Estimated quantity, end of ye 3,57( 61,67¢ 60,28( 60,971
@) Based on er-of-year pricing of oil and natural ge
Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cashlows
(Dollars in Thousands)
2010 2009 2008

Future estimated gross reveni $ 459,36! $ 333,16: $ 361,97:
Future estimated production co (28,439 (18,489 (17,38)
Future estimated net revent 430,93. 314,67: 344,59:
10% annual discount for estimated timing of casw§ (211,32) (148,639 (155,109
Standardized measure of discounted future estinratedash flow: $ 219,60¢ $ 166,03! $ 189,48:
Sales of oil and natural gas produced, net of prticl costs $ (52,970 $ (39,499 $ (84,647
Purchase of reserves in ple 8,80/ 7,458 —
Net changes in prices and production ¢ 56,75 (8,39¢) (102,40)
Revisions of previous quantity estima 27,89¢ 4,751 22,93t
Accretion of discoun 16,60: 18,94¢ 31,631
Change in production rate and ot (3,510 (6,709 5,58¢
Net change in standardized measure of discountadefestimated net cash flo) $ 53,57 $ (23,449 $(126,88))
Depletion of oil and natural gas properties (dsllper mcfe $ 167 $ 151 $ 14
Property acquisition cos $ 17,127 $ 35,24¢ $ —
Average oil price per barr $ 75.5¢ $ 56.3i $ $35.6¢
Average natural gas price per n@ $ 4.1¢ $ 3.2 $ 4.9

@) Based on er-of-year pricing of oil and natural ge
@ Includes Royalty and NPI prices combined by volumgiroportions
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7. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

DORCHESTER MINERALS, L.P.
(A Delaware Limited Partnership)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Quarterly financial data for the last two yearstfinusands except per unit data) is summarizedliasvk:

Total operating revenu

Net earning:

Net earnings per Unit (basic and diluti
Weighted average common units outstant

2010 Quarter Ended

2009 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
$15,53¢ $14,25¢ $16,467 $14,83. $ 8,822/ $ 9,68/ $10,70¢ $14,417
$892¢ $7932 $953€¢ $848¢ $3777 $472( $441F $ 8,76¢
$ 02¢ $ 028 $ 03C $ 027 $ 01t $ 01¢ $ 014 $ o0.2¢
29,84¢ 30,67t 30,67t 30,67t 28,24( 28,25¢ 29,84( 29,84(
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Subsidiaries of Registrant
Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma LP, an Oklahoma lichjzartnershiy
Dorchester Minerals Oklahoma GP, Inc., an Oklahoorporation
Maecenas Minerals LLP, a Texas limited liabilityrtp@rship

Dorcheste-Maecenas GP LLC, a Texas limited liability compi

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our reports dated February 24, 2@ respect to the consolidated financial statet®i@nd internal control over financial
reporting included in the Annual Report of Dorcleedflinerals, L.P. on Form 10-K for the year endest@&nber 31, 2010. We hereby consent
to the incorporation by reference of said reportthie Registration Statement of Dorchester MingtaR. on Form S-4 (File No. 333-124544).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011



Exhibit 23.2

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES
February 22, 2011

Dorchester Minerals L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

Calhoun, Blair & Associates does hereby consetiteédancorporation by reference in the Registratatement on Form S-4 (No. 333-124544)
of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of our estimated ressiincluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kluiging, without limitation, Exhibit 99.1,
and to all references to our firm included in tAisnual Report.

/s/ Robert G. Blair, P.E
Calhoun, Blair & Associate
Licensed Professional Engine
State of Texas #680*




Exhibit 23.3

Lafoche Petrolewn Consultants, Lid.

February 22, 2011

Dorchester Minerals L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, Ltd. does herebgertrto the incorporation by reference in the Regfisn Statement on Form S-4
(No. 333-124544) of Dorchester Minerals, L.P. of estimated reserves included in this Annual Reportorm 10-K including, without
limitation, Exhibit 99.2, and to all referencesatar firm included in this Annual Report.

LAROCHE PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS, LTD.

/sl Joe A. Youn(
Joe A. Younc
Senior Partne




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, William Casey McManemin, certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

s/ William Casey McManemi

William Casey McManemil
Date: February 24, 201 Chief Executive Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, H.C. Allen, Jr., certify that:
| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Dorchester Minerals, L.P

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the controls and proceduresf the end of the period covered by this repaseld on such evaluation; &

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repoet) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin

/s/ H.C. Allen, Jr

H.C. Allen, Jr.
Date: February 24, 201 Chief Financial Officer o
Dorchester Minerals Management GP LLC,
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals Managéinie
The General Partner of Dorchester Minerals,




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiorchester Minerals, L.P., (the “Partnership”)eorm 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2010 (the “Report”), each of the usigeed officers of Dorchester Minerals ManagemeRtLEC, General Partner of
Dorchester Minerals Management LP, General Padhttre Partnership, hereby certifies that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m «
780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Partnershig

/s/ William Casey McManemin
William Casey McManemil

Date: February 24, 201 Chief Executive Office
Date: February 24, 2011 /sl H.C. Allen, Jr
H.C. Allen, Jr.

Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 99.1

CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES
PETROLEUM CONSULTANTS
4625 GREENVILLE AVENUE, SUITE 102
DALLAS, TEXAS 75206
(214)-522-4925
FACSIMILE: (214) 346-0310
RGBLAIR@SWBELL.NET

January 19, 2011

Dorchester Minerals Operating GP LLC
General Partner

3838 Oak Lawn Avenue, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Gentlemen:

In accordance with your instructions we have pregastimates of oil and gas reserves from certgisehold and royalty interests owned
by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP, which consigtroperties grouped by Hugoton NPI, Republic Nglinnaker NP1, Maecenas NPI,
Minerals NPI and Bradley NPI. We have projected estimates of future oil and gas production anguab of January 1, 2011, for these
properties. This report includes 100% of the od gas reserves owned by Dorchester Minerals OperdtP, all of which are located in the
contiguous United States. This report was preptrgaovide Dorchester Minerals Operating LP witlt@éies and Exchange Commission
compliant reserve estimates.

Information necessary for the preparation of trestemates was obtained from records furnished hygister Minerals Operating LP,
from records on file with the state regulatory lesdiand from our own filedNo special tests were obtained to assist in theguegion of this
report. For the purpose of this report, the indiaibwell tests and production information as regwiih the records on file with the state
regulatory bodies were accepted as representegthirgwith all other factual data provided by Daster Minerals Operating LP, including
extent and character of the interest appraised.

The following table contains the estimated netmeseand revenues attributable to the propertypggdiat are currently in pay status as
of January 1, 2011.

Hugoton Republic Spinaker Maecenas
NPI NPI NP1 NPI Total
Net Oil Reserves, BB 0 38,81( 27C 5,35(C 44,43(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 24,862.66 496.49( 32.05( 129.89( 25,521.08
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 97,531,31 5,044,55! 166,84( 995,67( 103,738,37
Net Operating Expense, 39,353,741 1,447,76! 67,99( 283,40( 41,152,89
Net Taxes, ¢ 7,838,37! 498,23( 12,49( 100,35( 8,449,441
Net Capital Costs, 980,00( 0 0 0 980,00(
Net Income, § 49,359,21 3,098,56! 86,35( 611,92( 53,156,04

Net Present Worth at 10%, 33,765,87 2,151,02 67,04( 411,60( 36,395,53



CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

The estimated net reserves and revenues for tipeyogroups that are in a deficit status as ofidanl, 2011 are as follows:

Minerals Bradley
NPI NPI Total
Net Oil Reserves, BB 177,99( 38C 178,37(
Net Gas Reserves, MMC 4,259.82I 0.82( 4,260.641
Net Oil and Gas Revenue 30,353,37 32,44( 30,385,811
Net Lease Operating Expense 8,036,40! 6,63( 8,043,03!
Net Taxes, ¢ 2,392,78| 2,42( 2,395,20!
Net Capital Costs, 0 0 0
Net Income, § 19,924,19 23,39( 19,947,58
Net Present Worth at 10%, 14,025,15 18,92( 14,044,07

All estimated reserves in this report are conside®proved developed producing. Proved developmtliping reserves are those proved
to a high degree of certainty by reason of actaatmetion or successful testing. Estimates of pdaeserves were made using standard
geological and engineering methods accepted bgedtreleum industry. The method, or combination etmoeds, utilized was tempered by
experience in the area, state of development, tyuadid extent of the basic data and productiorohisfThese methods and procedures were
appropriate for the purpose served by this repudtvee have used all methods necessary under thenstances to prepare this report.

When the information was available and the methad applicable, oil and gas reserves in this repere estimated by the extrapolation
of historical trends of pressure decline as a fonadf cumulative production, oil and gas productaecline as a function of time and oil and
gas production decline as a function of cumulapikeduction. For certain wells having a limited puotlon history, reserves were estimated by
analogy with nearby similar wells in the same fotiora All gas volumes are raw wellhead gas voluegzessed at 60 degrees Fahrenheit and
at a standard pressure base of 14.65 pounds peresigeh absolute.

Reserves in this report are expressed as grossetruil and gas production. Net oil and gas praduaatepresents those reserves net tc
appraised interest after deducting all leasehottrapalty interests owned by others. Values of meseare expressed in terms of net operating
revenues, cash flow before taxes, and present wgethoperating revenue is revenue, which wouldweeto the appraised interests from the
production and sale of the estimated net rese@a&sh flow before taxes is obtained by deducting@ssnce and ad valorem taxes, net operating
expenses and capital costs from net operating tevétet operating expenses include an allocatiupérvisory costs chargeable to the le
but do not include general and administrative ogach Oil and gas prices, net operating expensefutume capital costs were furnished by
Dorchester Minerals Operating LP. Present worthefined as the future cash flow before taxes distzmlat the rate of ten (10.00) percent per
year compounded annually. For the purpose of #psnt no estimate was made of salvage value foextisting lease and well equipment,
costs involved in abandonment of the wells.

Due to inherent uncertainties in future productiates, commaodity prices and geologic conditions,réserves included in this report are
estimates only and should not be construed as lesiagt quantities. The revenues from such resemeédshe actual costs related thereto could
be more or less than the estimated amounts. Thpesfahis investigation did not include an envir@ntal study of these properties, nor was
an on-site field inspection conducted. For the psepof this report, it was necessary to assumetlibae properties are in compliance with
existing government regulations.



CALHOUN, BLAIR & ASSOCIATES

Because of governmental policies and uncertainfissipply and demand, the prices actually recefeethe reserves included in this report,
and the costs incurred in recovering such reseraag,vary from price and cost assumptions in thgort. In any case, estimates of reserves
may increase or decrease as a result of futuretperand as more production history becomes &veild here are no known pending
regulations that would affect the ability of Dorsker Minerals Operating LP to recover the estima¢sérves in this report.

The oil and gas prices included in this report wenavided by Dorchester Minerals Operating LP ardenadjusted for BTU, fuel and li
losses as well as for local markets. The Hugotareprwere determined as an unweighted arithmetcage of the Panhandle Eastern (Texas
and Oklahoma) first day of the month price durihg twelve month period of 2010. The benchmark g&e ffor the Hugoton operated
properties was $4.15 per MMBTU. The benchmark grioe the other NPI properties were determinednasraveighted arithmetic average of
the NYMEX Henry Hub and West Texas Intermediate+@g first day of the month price during the twelmenth period of 2010. The
benchmark oil and gas prices for the NPI propextiese $79.43 per barrel and $4.38 per MMBTU, retipely. The overall weighted average
prices were $73.49 per barrel and $3.95 per MMBTU.

Calhoun, Blair & Associates have not examined ithetb these properties, nor has the actual degréxge of interest owned been
independently confirmed. We are independent patrnlengineers; we do not own an interest in thespgsties and are not employed on a
contingent basis. Basic field performance datattegewith our engineering work sheets are mainthmefile in our office and are available
for review. Calhoun Blair & Associates have mettbguirements regarding qualifications, independenbjectivity, and confidentiality set
forth in the “Standards Pertaining to the Estimgtimd Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves Informati(me¥ised February 2007) promulgated by
the Society of Petroleum Engineers.

Included in this report are summaries of grossratil and gas reserves grouped by Hugoton NRIuRe& NPI, Spinnaker NPI,
Maecenas NPI, Minerals NP1 and Bradley NPI. Alsduded are projections of estimated annual grodshahoil and gas production, net
operating revenue, severance and ad valorem tageeperating expenses, net capital costs, cashbiddore taxes, and present worth for all
properties appraised as of January 1, 2011. Presetit of future cash flow is not meant to repreésbe Fair Market Value of these properties
or of Dorchester Minerals Operating LP.

Yours very truly,

s/s RG Blair, P.E.

Calhoun, Blair & Associate
Licensed Professional Engine
State of Texas #680¢




Exhibit 99.2

Lafoche Petrolewn Consultants, Lid.

January 20, 2011

Mr. Brad Ehrman
Dorchester Minerals, L.P.
3838 Oak Lawn, Suite 300
Dallas, Texas 75219-4541

Dear Mr. Ehrman:

At your request, LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, (UEC) has estimated the proved reserves andefatash flow, as of December 31,
2010, to the Dorchester Minerals, L.P. (DMLP) iefrin certain properties located onshore in thicental United States. This report was
completed as of the date of this letter. This rep@s prepared to provide DMLP with Securities Bxdhange Commission (SEC) compliant
reserve estimates. It is our understanding thatepert comprises one-hundred (100%) percent of BMloyalty interests, of which ninety-
four percent (94%) were evaluated by LPC and sikgre (6%) by Calhoun Blair. We believe that theusmsptions, data, methods, and
procedures used in preparing this report, as gdieaw, are appropriate for the purpose of thipore This report has been prepared using
constant prices and costs and conforms to our stateting of the SEC guidelines, reserves defirstiamd applicable financial accounting
rules.

The Fayetteville Royalty properties (Group 22) werejected by Calhoun Blair & Associates Inc. inllBs, Texas at the request of
DMLP. Calhoun Blair & Associates also preparesrdgerve estimates for DMLP’s net profits interesipgrties.

We note that we have necessarily included comppsitections of net oil and gas reserves for cengaoperties due to the limited
information available to DMLP as a royalty interestner and relatively small net reserves attribletéd any specific property within the
composite group.

Summarized below are LPC’s estimates of net reseaamd future net cash flow. Future net revenueiés [ deducting estimated
production and ad valorem taxes. Future net cashifi after deducting these taxes but before cenaftbn of federal income taxes. The
discounted cash flow values included in this repogtintended to represent the time value of mamelyshould not be construed to represel
estimate of fair market value. We estimate ther@sg¢rves and future net cash flow to the DMLP &ggras of December 31, 2010, to be:

Net Reserves Future Net Cash Flow (M$)
Equiv. NGL Net Net Present Worth
Qil Gas Revenue Taxes
Category (Mbbl) (MMcf) (MMcf) (M$) (M$) Total at 10%

Proved Developed Produci 3,29C  33,41¢ 3,561¢  $407,81¢ $28,43¢ $379,38t¢ $ 184,31t



The oil reserves include crude oil and condensadeasae expressed in thousands of barrels (Mbbliciwére equivalent to 42 United
States gallons/bbl. Gas reserves and equivalentat@as liquids (NGL) are expressed in millionstzéndard cubic feet (MMcf) at the contract
temperature and pressure bases.

The estimated reserves and future cash flow showims report are for proved developed producirsgmnees. This report does not inclt
any value that could be attributed to interestsrideveloped acreage.

The reserves in this report have been estimated) usterministic methods. The method or combinatiomethods utilized in the
evaluation of each reservoir included consideratibtine stage of development of the reservoir, iguahd completeness of basic data, and
production history. Recovery from various resers@ind leases was estimated after consideratidredf/pe of energy inherent in the
reservoirs, the structural positions of the prdpsrtand reservoir and well performance. In sors&airces, comparisons were made to similar
properties for which more complete data were ablaNe have used all methods and procedures thabwsidered necessary under the
circumstances to prepare this report. We have derddrom our consideration all matters as to witiehcontrolling interpretation may be legal
or accounting rather than engineering or geoscience

The estimated reserves and future cash flow amaunitss report are related to hydrocarbon pritéistorical prices through December
2010 were used in the preparation of this reporeggired by SEC guidelines; however, actual fupurees may vary significantly from the
SEC prices. In addition, future changes in envirental and administrative regulations may signiftbaaffect the ability of DMLP to produce
oil and gas at the projected levels. Thereforeuwas of reserves actually recovered and amourtastf flow actually received may differ
significantly from the estimated quantities presenn this report.

Benchmark prices used in this report are baseti®twelve-month un-weighted arithmetic averagéheffirst day of the month price for
the period January through December 2010. Gasspaieereferenced to a Henry Hub price of $4.38dBtu, as published in the Platts Gas
Daily, and are adjusted for energy content, trartagion fees, and regional price differentials. @ikces are referenced to a West Texas
Intermediate (WTI) crude oil price of $79.43 perrehat Cushing Oklahoma and are adjusted for gyagiude quality, transportation fees, and
regional price differentials. NGLs are presentetMiF-equivalent units; therefore prices are tiedatural gas prices. These benchmark prices
are held constant in accordance with SEC guidelifies weighted average prices after adjustmentstbedife of the properties are $75.62
barrel for oil and $4.31 per mcf for gas.

The interests evaluated in this report consistndf coyalty interests that are not burdened by afieg and capital costs.

LPC has made no investigation of possible gas veland value imbalances that may have resulted thhenoverdelivery or
underdelivery to the DMLP interest. Our projecti@me based on the DMLP interest receiving its ee¢nue interest share of estimated future
gross oil and gas productic



Technical information necessary for the preparatibiine reserve estimates herein was furnishedMi®or was obtained from state
regulatory agencies and commercially available dataces. No special tests were obtained to asdis¢ preparation of this report. For the
purpose of this report, the individual well testgroduction data as reported by the above sowees accepted as represented together with
all other factual data presented by DMLP including extent and character of the interest evaluated.

An on-site inspection of the properties has nohlqgeformed nor has the mechanical operation odition of the wells and their related
facilities been examined by LPC.

The evaluation of potential environmental liabilitpm the operation and abandonment of the pragseisi beyond the scope of this ref
In addition, no evaluation was made to determiediigree of operator compliance with current emvirental rules, regulations, and reporting
requirements. Therefore, no estimate of the pateationomic liability, if any, from environmentadrecerns is included in the projections
presented herein.

There are inherent uncertainties in the estimatiwh projection of future reserves and revenues.ré&serves included in this report are
estimates only and should not be construed as euacitities. They may or may not be recovereddbrered, the revenues therefrom and the
costs related thereto could be more or less thmedtimated amounts. These estimates should bptadogith the understanding that future
development, production history, changes in regaiat product prices, and operating expenses wanalbably cause us to make revisions in
subsequent evaluations. A portion of these resamefor producing wells that lack sufficient pratlan history to utilize performance-related
reserve estimates. Therefore, these reserves sed ba estimates of reservoir volumes and receffigiencies along with analogies to simi
production. These reserve estimates are subjecgteater degree of uncertainty than those basedlmstantial production and pressure data. It
may be necessary to revise these estimates upnwar idcthe future as additional performance dataobecavailable. As in all aspects of oil and
gas evaluation, there are uncertainties inherethtdrinterpretation of engineering and geologiehdtherefore, our conclusions represent
informed professional judgments only, not statemefifact.

The results of our third-party study were prepaneaiccordance with the disclosure requirement$ostt in the SEC regulations and
intended for public disclosure as an exhibit imfjls made with the SEC by DMLP.

DMLP makes periodic filings on Form 10-K with th&S under the 1934 Exchange Act. Furthermore, DM&a® ¢ertain registration
statements filed with the SEC under the 1933 Seesirhct into which any subsequently filed FormK.@s incorporated by reference. We he
consented to the incorporation by reference irrglgéstration statements on Form S-3 and Form SEBMIEP of the references to our name as
well as to the references to our third-party reparDMLP which appears in the December 31, 20lfuahreport on Form 10-K and/or X0A
of DMLP. Our written consent for such use is inddds a separate exhibit to the filings made wighSEC by DMLP.

We have provided DMLP with a digital version of tiéginal signed copy of this report letter. In #nent there are any differences
between the digital version included in filings radey DMLP and the original signed report letteg thiginal signed report letter shall control
and supersede the digital versi



The technical persons responsible for preparingegberve estimates presented herein meet the eawgiits regarding qualifications,
independence, objectivity, and confidentiality fegth in the “Standards Pertaining to the Estingtimd Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserves
Information” (revised February 2007) promulgatediy Society of Petroleum Engineers. The techmiesdon primarily responsible for
overseeing the preparation of reserves estimate@hie Joe A. Young. Mr. Young is a ProfessionaiBeer licensed in the State of Texas
who has twenty-nine years of engineering experiémtiee oil and gas industry. Mr. Young earned ahgdor of Science degree in Petroleum
Engineering from Texas A&M University and MastansBusiness Administration degree from West TexasvA&niversity and has prepared
reserves estimates for his employers and his owrpeaies throughout his career. He has preparedardeen preparation of reports for
public filings for LPC for the past fourteen yedr®.C is an independent firm of petroleum enginegeslogists, and geophysicists and is not
employed on a contingent basis. Data pertinertitoreport are maintained on file in our office.

Very truly yours,

LaRoche Petroleum Consultants, L
State of Texas Registration Numbe¢1360

/sl Joe A. Youn(

Joe A. Younc
Licensed Professional Engine
State of Texas No. 628t

/sl Peter R. Laudo

Peter R. Laudo

Licensed Professional Engine
State of Texas No. 986(
Licensed Professional Geoscien
State of Texas No. 277
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